
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
    
I. MINUTES  

A. March 20, 2014 
B. April 11, 2014 
 

II. RETIREMENT 
A. Job Service Retirement Plan – Sparb/Kathy (Board Action) (possible Executive 
Session pursuant to NDCC 44-04-18.4(1) and 44-04-19.2(1) to discuss confidential 
information) 
B. GASB 67/68 – Sparb (Board Action)  
C. Job Service Retirement Plan DOL Update – Sparb (Information)  
 

III. GROUP INSURANCE 
A. Healthy Blue Authorization – Sparb (Board Action)  
B. Health Consultant Selection – Sparb (Board Action) 
C. Health Plan – Sparb (Board Action)  
D. Affordable Care Act Update – Sparb (Information) 
E. Affordable Care Act Fees – Sparb (Board Action)  
F. Long Term Care Insurance – Sparb (Board Action)  
G. HIPAA Business Associate Agreement with BCBSND – Sparb (Board Action)  
H. Delta Dental Rate Renewal – Kathy (Board Action) 
I. House Bill 1443, Diabetes Coalition – Sparb (Information)  

 
IV. MISCELLANEOUS   

A. DOMA Update – Jan (Information)  
B. Legislative Studies – Sparb (Information)  
C. 2013 Annual Report – Sharon (Information) 
D. PERSLink – Sharon (Board Action)  
E. Website Development – Deb (Board Action)  
F. Personnel Policies – Kathy (Board Action)  
G. Executive Director Review – (Board Action)  
H. Quarterly Consultant Fees (Information)  
I. Audit Committee: December 19, 2013 Minutes and Charter Activity Review     
          (Information)  
 

V. DEFERRED COMPENSATION 
A. Hardship Case 192 – Kathy (Board Action)  

 
Any individual requiring an auxiliary aid or service must contact the NDPERS ADA Coordinator at 
328-3900, at least 5 business days before the scheduled meeting. 

 
 

Bismarck Location: 
ND Association of Counties 

1661 Capitol Way 
Fargo Location: 

BCBS, 4510 13th Ave S 

Time: 1:30 PM April 29, 2014  



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb & Kathy     
 
DATE:   April 22, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  Job Service Retirement Plan 
 
 
At the last Board meeting we reviewed Attachment #1 – a Board memo relating to the Job 
Service Retirement Plan and the method used for the uniform income option.  At that 
meeting the Board requested two additional items:  
 

1. If the method was changed to be the same used for the other PERS retirement plans 
at the effective date of PERSLink, how many members would have had their benefit 
processed under the old method and how many under the new method?  Please see 
Attachment #2. 

2. What is the authority of the PERS Board to make such a change?  Please see 
Attachment #3, a letter from Jan on this subject. 

 
  
Board Action Requested 
 

• Provide staff direction on whether current administrative procedures for similarly 
situated members in the other PERS systems should be consistent for members in 
the Job Service Uniform Income Option, or 
 

• Select option 2 or 3 from Attachment #1. 
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Kathy & Sparb      
 
DATE:   March 11, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  Job Service Retirement Plan 
 
During an internal audit of the Job Service plan, it was discovered that there is an inconsistency in 
the administration of the COLA increases related to the Uniform Income Option.  The Uniform 
Income Option under the Job Service plan is the same as the Level Social Security Option 
previously available under the defined benefit hybrid plan; it coordinates with Social Security benefits 
to provide a level income, both before a member is eligible to draw Social Security and after the 
member begins receiving Social Security which must begin no later than age 62.  At age 62 the Job 
Service benefit is automatically reduced by the primary Social Security amount.  This is where the 
inconsistency was detected and appears to have occurred at the time we transitioned to PERSLink 
in October 2010. 
 
The calculation establishes a base benefit amount which is then increased by the primary Social 
Security benefit.  Prior to PERSLink, the Job Service system was set up using Excel spreadsheets 
and formulas provided by Job Service when we assumed administration of the plan in 2003. When a 
COLA increase was authorized, it was calculated separately on the base annuity benefit and primary 
Social Security benefit. When the member attained age 62, the benefit was reduced by the Social 
Security benefit including the applicable COLA increase associated with that amount.  Since the 
transition to PERSLink, at age 62 the benefit is only reduced by the primary Social Security benefit, 
but not the associated COLA increases. This difference appears to be the result of not recognizing 
this distinction within the Excel formulas when the programming was developed for the plan in our 
current system.  However, the current procedure is the same used by PERS for any members that 
selected the Level Social Security Option; at age 62, the benefit is reduced by only the Social 
Security benefit and any ad hoc increases are retained as part of the base benefit.     
 
Due to the change in methodology when reducing the benefit at age 62, eight members were 
overpaid as the COLA attributed to the Social Security benefit was not reduced and subsequent 
COLA increases accrued on the higher base benefit payment.  Included is a list of the overpayments  
 
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



NDPERS Board 
March 13, 2014 
Page 2 
 
 
owed by these members who turned 62 since October of 2010.  The amount of overpayment is 
shown in the ‘Total’ column.  In addition, an adjustment to the current monthly benefit by the amount 
of the accrued COLA on the higher benefit amount would be indicated.  The amount is of this 
adjustment is shown in the ‘COLA Adjustment Necessary’ column. 
  
The options available to address this issue for future members who may select the Uniform Income 
Option and current members that have received an overpayment of benefits are as follows: 
 

1. Administer the plan consistent with how PERS administers this provision for its other 
systems which means at age 62 the benefit is reduced by only the primary Social Security 
benefit. 

2. Reprogram the PERSLink system to reduce the benefit at age 62 by both the Social Security 
benefit and associated COLA increases, or 

3. Implement a process to manually reduce the benefit by the COLA increases associated with 
the Social Security benefit. 

 
Following are the considerations for each of the above options: 
 
1. Administer consistently with PERS.  A review of the Job Service Plan Documents, SPDs, 

various member correspondence both prior to and after the transition to PERSLink, and 
administrative manuals does not provide a clear interpretation regarding the administration of the 
COLA increase at age 62. Attachment 2 has examples of such documentation. The procedure 
implemented at the time of the transition to PERSLink is the same as is used for similarly 
situated members in the other PERS systems.   
 

2. Reprogram PERSLink.  We have received an estimate of effort from our software vendor to 
change the system to calculate the COLA separately for the base benefit amount and the Social 
Security amount so that upon attainment of age 62, both the Social Security amount and related 
COLA increases can systematically be removed from the benefit.  It is estimated that these 
changes would cost between $6,000 - $8,000, plus staff time for testing.  There are currently 
only 13 members actively contributing to the Job Service plan of which 5 are age 62 or older and 
would not be eligible for the Uniform Income Option.  This leaves 8 members who may or may 
not choose the Uniform Income Option upon retirement.  Due to the small number of members 
that would potentially be impacted by this programming change, we would recommend not 
making this investment in the PERSLink system.  

 
3. Manual Process.  A process could be put into place to manually determine the amount of the 

COLA associated with the Social Security amount so that upon the member reaching age 62, the 
benefit could be manually reduced by the related COLA.  The process would include a review of 
the COLA calculation by Internal Audit to verify that the benefit is being reduced correctly.  A 
process would also need to be established to identify when the benefit needs to be adjusted for 
the COLA, since PERSLink is currently set up to reduce the benefit by the Social Security 
amount automatically upon the member reaching age 62.  Because this is an exception to 
normal processing and there are such a small number of members that this may apply to, there 
is the risk that accounts may not be identified and adjusted correctly. 

 
 



NDPERS Board 
March 13, 2014 
Page 3 
 
 
In addition, if either 2 or 3 are selected, the changes would be prospective.  A request for refund of 
the overpayment amounts would be initiated and the monthly benefit going forward would be 
adjusted accordingly. 
 
 
Board Action Requested 
 

• Provide staff direction on whether current administrative procedures for similarly situated 
members in the other PERS systems should be consistent for members in the Job Service 
Uniform Income Option, or 

• Select option 2 or 3. 









 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 16, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  GASB 67 & 68 
 
 
New Pension Standards  
 
In June 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) issued two new 
standards that will substantially change the accounting and financial reporting of public 
employee pension plans and the state and local governments that participate in such plans. 
GASB Statement No. 67, Financial Reporting for Pension Plans, revises existing guidance 
for the financial reports of most governmental pension plans. GASB Statement No. 68, 
Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions, revises and establishes new financial 
reporting requirements for most governments that provide their employees with pension 
benefits. GASB Statement No. 67 is effective for financial statements for periods beginning 
after June 15, 2013. GASB Statement No. 68 is effective for financial statements for fiscal 
years beginning after June 15, 2014.    
 
Proposed Implementation Plan for NDPERS 
 
The above provisions apply to TFFR as well as NDPERS.  Our second largest client is 
school districts which is TFFR’s primary client.  Consequently, since our efforts will overlap 
for this group, we felt it would be a good idea for PERS/TFFR to work closely on this project  
since it will help to reduce cost, reduce duplication of effort and provide consistent reporting 
to our employers.  For these reasons, we have worked closely with TFFR to develop this 
plan of action.  In addition, since this information is to be reported on the financial 
statements of employers, we have also reached out to the State Auditors Office to assist 
with the planning.  The plan we have developed includes three basic tasks: 
 

1. Educate our participating employers on this new requirement and the information we 
will be sending them. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



2. Develop the necessary information that needs to be sent to our participating 
employers. 

3. Integrate this effort into the ongoing operations of the plan going forward. 
 
Task 1 - Educate our participating employers on this new requirement and the 
information we will be sending them. 
 
For this step TFFR and PERS have been working with the State Auditors Office.  The plan 
that has developed is in two stages. 
 
The first stage in this task is to bring together a small group (6 employers from TFFR & 6 
from PERS with 1-3 people from each employer attending).  With this pilot group, we will 
work through the requirements of GASB 67 & 68.  This meeting will be sponsored by TFFR, 
the State Auditor Office and NDPERS.  Specifically, we would provide education to this 
group, review the information that we will be providing them and work with them to 
determine what issues they may have with implementation.  We are targeting June 26 for 
this meeting.  In addition, we would invite to that meeting other general groups that would 
have an interest in learning about these requirement.  To conduct the education we have 
identified Mr. Eric Berman from Eide Baily.  He has been working with many public sector 
groups around the country.  Eide Baily is also an auditor that the State Auditors Office uses.  
We are presently working with him to get a cost estimate that I should have by the board 
meeting.  PERS and TFFR would share these expenses.  However, work relating 
specifically to one system or the other would be that system’s responsibility.  We expect to 
have about 50 to 80 people at this meeting.  
 
The second stage in this task is to have a statewide meeting for all PERS and TFFR 
employers which will also be sponsored by TFFR, the State Auditors Office and NDPERS.  
The purpose of this meeting for these employers would be similar to that in the first stage, 
but we would also add the lessons learned in working with our pilot group.  We can also 
have members of the pilot share with the full group what they have learned during their 
initial efforts.  We are targeting November 18 for this meeting and would expect to have 200 
to 400 people at this meeting.  We are hoping to webcast or record this meeting for 
employers who are unable to attend.  
 
Task 2 - Develop the necessary information that needs to be sent to our 
participating employers 
 
The GASB has set certain required information that must now be disclosed on the financial 
statement of all our employers.  This information needs to be developed by our actuary for 
each of our employer groups and sent to them. The following is a sample schedule showing 
the information: 
 

2 | P a g e  
 



 
 

Attached is information from Segal on the cost of developing this additional information and 
schedule for its production.  This was developed in response to a request from PERS/TFFR.   
 
Tack 3 - Integrate this effort into the ongoing operations of the plan going 
forward 
 
In the future the above additional tasks will need to be added to the annual valuation effort 
by the actuary and the annual efforts by PERS staff to send this information to each of our 
employers.   
 
Board Action Requested: 
 
Approve the GASB 67 & 68 implementation plan and associated efforts. 
 

3 | P a g e  
 



 

5990 Greenwood Plaza Boulevard  Suite 118  Greenwood Village, CO 80111-4708 
T 303.714.9900  www.segalco.com 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 Benefits, Compensation and HR Consulting. Member of The Segal Group. Offices throughout the United States and Canada 
 

April 22, 2014 
 
 
Ms. Fay Kopp, Deputy Director – Retirement Officer  
North Dakota Teachers’ Fund for Retirement 
1930 Burnt Boat Drive 
Bismarck, ND 58507-7100 
 
Mr. Sparb Collins, Executive Director 
North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System 
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 
Bismarck, ND 58502 
 
Re:  North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) and North Dakota 

Teachers’ Fund for Retirement (TFFR) Implementation Proposal for GASB 
Statement Nos. 67 and 68 

 
Dear Fay and Sparb: 

As you know, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued a new 
Statement No. 67 that replaces the financial disclosure requirements that public employers such 
as PERS and TFFR (collectively referred to herein as “the Systems”) have been following under 
Statement No. 25. In addition, there is a companion Statement No. 68 that replaces the Systems’ 
participating employer disclosure requirements under Statement No. 27. The effective dates for 
the new requirements will be the Plan Years ending June 30, 2014 for Statement No. 67 and 
Fiscal Years ending  June 30, 2015 for Statement No. 68. 

As the valuation results for funding purposes will no longer be sufficient for financial disclosure 
purposes, we anticipate that there will be a significant amount of additional work in preparing the 
new disclosures. This will especially be the case during the first year of implementation as Segal 
becomes familiar with the practical requirements of satisfying the Statements. There will be 
considerable effort in coordinating the preparation of these disclosures among the Systems’ staffs 
and auditors, employers, employers’ auditors, and Segal. In addition, the Statements require a 
reconciliation of Net Pension Liability (NPL) in the first year of implementation. This will result 
in the calculation of two years of results before the 2014 disclosures can be prepared. 

Below is a tentative list of implementation steps that we foresee being needed throughout this 
process. Please note that these items may change as more about the process becomes known. 
  



 

 

North Dakota PERS and TFFR 
April 22, 2014 
Page 2 

 

 

ITEM TIMEFRAME RESPONSIBILITY 

Discussions With Auditors March 2014 PERS/TFFR/Segal/State 
Auditor/Brady Martz/Clifton Larson 

2013 GASB 67 Results for 2013-2014 
Reconciliation 

July 1, 2014 Segal 

2014 Valuation Data/Assets Delivery July-August 2014 PERS/TFFR 

2014 Valuation Results Delivery October 15, 2014 Segal 

2014 Valuation Results Presentation October 23, 2014 Segal 

2014 GASB 67 Interest Rate Calculations October 31, 2014 Segal 

2014 GASB 67 Results Preparation October 31, 2014 Segal 

2014 GASB 67 Disclosure Items 
Preparation 

October 31, 2014 Segal/State Auditor/Brady 
Martz/Clifton Larson 

2014 GASB 68 Percentage and Liability 
Allocations 

November 10, 2014 Segal 

2014 GASB 68 Allocations 
Communicated to Employers 

November 2014 PERS/TFFR 

Employer Education Ongoing PERS/TFFR/State Auditor 

As a first step, we recommend an initial discussion between Segal, PERS and TFFR staff, the 
auditors for PERS and RIO (Brady Martz and Clifton Larson), and the State Auditor to discuss 
the above steps and make any changes to the scope of this assignment, as necessary. 

In 2015 and thereafter, we expect that the GASB 67 and GASB 68 information will be prepared 
along with the annual actuarial valuations in October.  

While GASB Statement No. 68 will not take effect until employer fiscal years beginning after 
June 15, 2014 (one year later than the effective date of GASB Statement No. 67), the AICPA 
State and Local Government Expert Panel’s February 2014 White Paper recommends that “cost-
sharing plans calculate each employer’s allocation percentage and collective pension amounts”. 
Pursuant to this recommendation, PERS and TFFR will communicate to employers the 
allocations of the Net Pension Liability, Pension Expense, Deferred Outflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions, and Deferred Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions, based upon the 
Systems’ June 30, 2014 financial statements. These amounts will be communicated in November 
2014, allowing employers to have access to these numbers well in advance of their auditors’ 
deadlines. 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
North Dakota PERS and TFFR 
April 22, 2014 
Page 3 

Since the scope of the project is not completely defined at this time, we would propose that our 
cost to assist PERS and TFFR to comply with the new Statements for the Plan Year 2014-2015 
be based on our hourly time charges associated with completing these projects. Our estimate of 
fees for your plans for the items above are provided below. 

 
 

ITEM ESTIMATED COST – PERS ESTIMATED COST – TFFR 

2014 GASB 67 Calculations and 
Preparation of Disclosure Items  

(includes 2013 GASB 67 
Calculations for 2013-2014 
Reconciliation) 

$37,000 – $74,000 

(130-260 hours) 

$18,500 – $37,000 

(65-130 hours) 

2014 GASB 68 Employer 
Percentage Allocations 

$3,000 – $6,000 

(10-20 hours) 

$1,500 – $3,000 

(5-10 hours) 

2014 GASB 68 Employer Liability 
Allocations 

$6,000 – $12,000 

(20-40 hours) 

$3,000 – $6,000 

(10-20 hours) 

 

The first and second items above will include the GASB 67 calculations and disclosures and a 
calculation of GASB Statement No. 68 percentage allocations for the purposes of calculating Net 
Pension Liability and Pension Expense. The third item covers the additional work to calculate 
the Net Pension Liability and items needed for Pension Expense for individual employers. Please 
note that the amounts are larger for PERS because that System has more cost groups that will 
each require an independent rate calculation. We also anticipate that the costs for these services 
will be less in future years as the templates for delivering the work will be constructed in the first 
year. 

For your information, the attached document (taken from a December 2012 Segal Public Sector 
Letter) contains a table that shows the extensive list of items that will ultimately need to be 
disclosed for GASB Statement Nos. 67 and 68.  

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 
North Dakota PERS and TFFR 
April 22, 2014 
Page 4 

 

We look forward to discussing this with you further. 
 
Sincerely,      Sincerely, 

       
Kim Nicholl, FSA, MAAA, EA   Brad Ramirez, FSA, MAAA, EA 
Senior Vice President and Actuary   Consulting Actuary 
 
/cz 
 
Enclosure 
cc: Cathie Eitelberg 

Tammy Dixon 
Matt Strom 

 
5295148v4/01640.001 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb       
 
DATE:   April 16, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  Job Service Retirement Plan Update with DOL 
 
 
Attached is a letter to Eric Seleznow, Acting Assistant Secretary, U.S. Department of Labor 
(DOL), relating to the Job Service Retirement Plan.  We have requested various documents 
in order to clarify the intent and impact of the 1999 agreement on the 1980 MOU.  Also 
attached is the response from the DOL assigning it a tracking number under the Freedom of 
Information Act.  
 
For your information, in 1975, the Department of Labor negotiated a package of benefits 
designed to upgrade the independent retirement Plans. Improvements to the Plans were 
adopted and employee contributions were increased. The Department of Labor chose to 
amortize the unfunded liability created by these improvements over a period of 20 years.  
 
In 1980, discussion began between states which still maintained independent retirement 
Plans, and the Department of Labor. As a result of those discussions, the Department of 
Labor agreed to allow cost of living and military service credit provisions in 1980 while the 
states agreed to close enrollments in the independent Plans as of October 1, 1980. The 
Department of Labor chose to amortize the unfunded liability created by these changes over 
a period of 30 years.  
 
From 1983 to 1998, the United States Department of Labor has paid the required 
amortization of the unfunded liability of the Job Service North Dakota independent 
retirement Plan. Fifteen years remain on the 30-year amortization schedule with a remaining 
balance for the unfunded liability of the North Dakota Plan in the amount of $9.7 million as 
of July 1998. Also at this time, the funded status of the Plan had reached a point where the 
actuarial value of the benefits was $50.6 million and the actuarial value of assets was $61.7 
million. The funded status of the Plan was 119%. Based upon this funded status, the United 
States Department of Labor question why it should continue to make the amortization 
payments.  

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



 
To resolve this issue Job Service and the United States Department of Labor agreed to the 
following:  
 

1. Commencing with the 1999 payment the United States Department of Labor will 
suspend the unfunded liability payments.  

2. The unfunded liability payments will be reactivated and resumed by the Untied States 
Department of Labor at any time when the actuarial valuation indicates the Plan is in 
an under funded status.  

3. The trigger mechanism for determining when the Plan goes into an underfunded 
status is when the actuarial value of assets is less than the actuarial present value of 
benefits. This information will be made available in the annual Plan actuarial 
valuation report.  

 
  

2 | P a g e  
 







 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 22, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  Healthy Blue Authorization 
 
 
In follow up to the last Board meeting, BCBS staff will be at the April meeting to review 
authorization language with the Board. Refer to attached memo.   
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



 
 

Memorandum 
 
 
 
TO:   Sparb Collins, NDPERS 
 
FROM:  Kevin Schoenborn, BCBSND 
 
DATE:  Tuesday, April 29, 2014 
 
 
SUBJECT: Discussion on Authorization for Release of Information – Wellness 
Programs language on the HealthyBlue portal. 
 
BCBSND personnel will be at the April 29 Board meeting to provide an update to the 
Authorization language modification that BCBSND can modify based on input from 
NDPERS members and the NDPERS Board of Directors. 
 
 
Recommended changes to the Authorization for Release of Information – Wellness 
Programs language have been drafted and will be discussed.   

 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 24, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  Health Plan Consultant  
 
 
At the March meeting the Board decided to seek proposals from consultants to assist us with 
the health plan bid.  Pursuant to that direction, Attachment 1 is the RFP that was issued.  It was 
sent to all those listed on Attachment 2 and a public notice was placed in North Dakota papers 
March 22 – 24 (Attachment 3).  Questions on the RFP were due on April 8.  Attachment 4 is the 
questions and our response.  Proposals were due on April 17 and we received 4 proposals: 
 

1. Gallagher Benefit Services 
2. Hay Group 
3. Segal 
4. Deloitte 

 
We had an internal review team with 4 individuals evaluate and rate all the proposals for 
technical approach, prior experience, and staffing/organization. Team members were not 
allowed to discuss the proposals with each other during the rating. The weighting factors for 
each area were included in the RFP on page 15.  Once the ratings were completed and 
complied, the cost proposals were opened and rated and shared with the group.  Attachment 5 
is the team ratings and cost proposal ratings.     
 
Overall, the proposals met the minimum qualifications and no exceptions were noted to the work 
effort.  However, there were exceptions proposed for the contract and HIPAA agreement which 
have been forwarded to Jan for review.  The following are some observations for each firm: 
 
Gallagher Benefit Services – Overall rank #4 

• Ranked last in total points. Many of their responses to the questions were very brief 
compared to the other proposers. 

• They had the second lowest hourly rate but the second highest fixed fee.   

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

1 | P a g e  
 



• They have successfully served as the PERS health consultant in the past.  Additionally, 
the lead person assigned to the project was the PERS health insurance manager in the 
late 1980’s and therefore is familiar with our operations in a unique way. Overall, a good 
team.   

• Concerning the conflict of interest question, they indicated “GBS is not aware of any 
conflict of interest that would preclude us from effectively providing the scope of services 
required by NDPERS.  We agree not to accept any direct or indirect compensation on 
behalf of NDPERS other than our consulting fee”.   
 

Hay Group – Overall rank #3 
• Ranked third in total points.  They had the highest fixed fee charges of $90,000 

compared to GBS at $25,250, Segal at $20,000 and Deloitte at $10,000. 
• Hay Group showed strong experience with Part D administration. 
• They did not have a pharmacist assigned to the project team.  Otherwise, appears to be 

a good team.  
• Concerning the conflict of interest question, they indicated “Hay Group has no conflict of 

interest as it pertains to the scope of services requested in this RFP” 
 

Segal – Overall rank #2 
• Segal was ranked #2 overall.  They had the second lowest fixed proposal cost at 

$20,000, but they had the highest hourly rate for the other parts of the RFP effort.   
• This firm successfully did our dental RFP several years ago. 
• They have a good team assigned to the proposal. 
• Concerning the conflict of interest question, they indicated: 

 
5. Conflicts of Interest 

 
 
No Conflict of Interest exists relative to our proposal to NDPERS. 

 
As a fee-based consulting firm with full transparency of any commissions received, The Segal Group 
(“Segal”) is committed to providing unbiased advice that will ultimately generate the best value for its 
client. We fully disclose any commissions on a dollar for dollar basis. With respect to the proposed 
NDPERS Group Health Plan Actuarial and Consulting Services, Segal will not receive any commissions 
unless requested to do so by both NDPERS Board of Directors and Executive Director. 

 
Insurer  incentive  compensation/supplemental commission payments are  used  to finance  national 
investments in research, technology, database development and client education to improve overall client 
services. Generally, any insurer incentive payments derived are based on Segal book of business activity 
and are limited to less than 1% of total Segal revenue. However, Segal has the ability to direct all vendors 
to exclude specific clients from the determination of incentive compensation/supplemental commission 
payments and will not allow any contracts issued to NDPERS to be used in the calculation of such 
payments unless requested to do so by both the NDPERS Board of Directors and Executive Director. 

 

The  approach  that  our  staff  takes  in  analyzing  insurance proposals and  making recommendations 

2 | P a g e  
 



regarding types and levels of coverage is objective and is free from any influence by 
commissions or supplemental payments. Objective analysis and neutrality are core values of 
Segal, and the insurance industry recognizes it. We base our recommendations solely on client 
requirements and objectives. All of this ensures that we have only the best interests of our clients 
in mind when we approach our work.  For more information, please read our “Compensation for 
Life and Health Benefit Services” disclosure at  http://www.segalco.com/uploads/life-and-health-
benefit-services.pdf. 

 
 
Deloitte – Overall rank #1 

• As the incumbent, they had the strongest understanding of our program and the 
effort required to conduct the RFP. 

• They were ranked #1 in total points. 
• They had the lowest fixed fee price; however, their hourly blended rate was the 

second highest.  In comparing this difference to Hay Group’s highest fixed fee, it 
means that the fee for service efforts would need to exceed 1,379 hours before their 
proposal was lower cost, and for GBS it would have to exceed 565 hours before 
being lower cost.  

• Concerning the conflict of interest question, they indicated “We do not believe that 
Deloitte consulting has any professional or ethical conflicts of interest which might 
interfere with handling this contract, including matters and/or cases where the firm 
currently represents and individual or entity with interest adverse to NDPERS. 

• They had the most state experience. They are now or recently have been the 
consultant to Minnesota, Iowa, Wisconsin, Illinois and Pennsylvania. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.segalco.com/uploads/life-and-health-benefit-services.pdf
http://www.segalco.com/uploads/life-and-health-benefit-services.pdf














































































 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 22, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  Health Plan Bid 
 
 
Jan will be at the next meeting to discuss the attached memo (Attachment #1) on the health 
plan bid.  Since the statutes have changed since our last major bid in 2004, I asked her for 
her review.  Attachment #2 is for your reference and is the statutory requirements relating to 
the bid.  
 
As you will note from Jan’s discussion and the statutory provisions, we have the following 
options when we go to bid: 
 

Fully Insured Self Insured 
1. Fully Insured – Bundled all services 
2. Fully Insured – all services except Rx & 

HDHP/HSA 
3. Fully Insured – all services except Rx (active/ 

retiree 
4. Fully Insured – all services except HDHP/HSA 

1. Self insured – Bundled all services 
2. Self insured – Bundled except for Rx and 

HDHP/HSA 
3. HDHP/HSA 
4. Rx (active/retiree) 
 
 

 
Presently we have #1 above for fully insured with BCBS.  As we approach the next bid, do 
we want to consider unbundling some of the service in the pricing to determine if their 
arrangements that may be more cost effective.  For example, staying fully insured on the 
medical but self insuring the Rx or the HDHP/HSA.  We can discuss this at the next meeting 
after you have heard from Jan.    
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 







Process requirements in statute - general: 

;  
1. The board shall receive bids for the providing of hospital benefits coverage, medical 

benefits coverage ….(54-52.1-04 NDCC);   
2. The board may receive bids separately for prescription drug coverage (54-52.1-04 NDCC); 
3. The board shall accept one or more bids of and contract with the carriers that in the 

judgment of the board best serves the interests of the state and its eligible employees  
(54-52.1-04 NDCC) 

4. In preparing bid proposals and evaluating bids, the board may utilize the services of 
consultants on a contract basis in order that the bids received may be uniformly 
compared and properly evaluated (54-52.1-04 NDCC). 

5. The board may reject any or all bids and, in the event it does so, shall again solicit bids 
as provided in this section (54-52.1-04 NDCC). 

 
Contract Timeframe 
 

1. The board shall receive bids for ……a specified term (54-52.1-04 NDCC);  
2. Upon establishing a self-insurance plan, the board shall solicit bids for an administrative 

services only or third-party administrator contract only every other biennium, and the 
board is authorized to renegotiate an existing administrative services only or third-party 
administrator contract during the interim (54-52.1-04.2 NDCC) 
 

Bid Timeframes and Notice  
 

1. Solicitations must be made not later than ninety days before the expiration of an existing 
uniform group insurance contract (54-52.1-04 NDCC) 

2. All bids under this section are due no later than January first, and must be awarded no 
later than March first, preceding the end of each biennium. All bids under this section 
must be opened at a public meeting of the board. (For self insurance) (54-52.1-04.2 
NDCC) 

3. Bids must be solicited by advertisement in a manner selected by the board that will 
provide reasonable notice to prospective bidders (54-52.1-04 NDCC) 

 
 
Decision Criteria (54-52.1-04 NDCC) 
 
In determining which bid, if any, will best serve the interests of eligible employees and the state, 
the board shall give adequate consideration to the following factors: 

1. The economy to be effected. 
2. The ease of administration. 
3. The adequacy of the coverages. 
4. The financial position of the carrier, with special emphasis as to its solvency. 
5. The reputation of the carrier and any other information that is available tending to 

show past experience with the carrier in matters of claim settlement, underwriting, and 
services. 
 
 



 
Self Insurance Requirements (54-52.1-04.2 NDCC) 
 
1) The board may establish a self-insurance plan for providing: 

a) Health insurance benefits coverage; 
b) Health insurance benefits coverage excluding all or part of prescription drug 
c) coverage; or 
d) All or part of prescription drug coverage 

2) In addition, individual stop-loss coverage insured by a carrier authorized to do business in 
this state must be made part of any self-insured plan. 

3) Any self-insurance plan under this section must be provided under an administrative 
services only (ASO) contract or a third-party administrator (TPA) contract under the uniform 
group insurance program, 

 
 
Self insurance Decision Criteria (54-52.1-04.2 NDCC) 
 
Any self insurance plan under this section …..may be established only if it is determined by 
the board that an administrative services only or third-party administrator plan is less 
costly than the lowest bid submitted by a carrier for underwriting the plan with 
equivalent contract benefits. 
 
Self insurance Reserve Requirement (54-52.1-04.3 NDCC) 
 

1. The board shall establish under a self-insurance plan a contingency reserve fund to 
provide for adverse fluctuations in future charges, claims, costs, or expenses of the 
uniform group insurance program. 

2. The board shall determine the amount necessary to provide a balance in the 
contingency reserve fund between one and one-half months and three months of claims 
paid based on the average monthly claims paid during the twelve-month period 
immediately preceding March first of each year. 

3. The board also shall determine the amount necessary to provide an additional balance 
in the contingency reserve fund between one month and one and one-half months for 
claims incurred but not yet reported. 

4. The board may arrange for the services of an actuarial consultant to assist the board in 
making these determinations 

5. Upon the initial changeover from a contract for insurance pursuant to section 54-52.1-04 
to a self-insurance plan pursuant to section 54-52.1-04.2, the board must have a plan in 
place which is reasonably calculated to meet the funding requirements of this chapter 
within sixty months. 

 
 
(54-52.1-04 NDCC) 
(54-52.1-04.2 NDCC) 
(54-52.1-04.3 NDCC) 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 15, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  Affordable Care Act (ACA) Implementation 
 
 
NDPERS staff has been working with the OMB and Higher Education on the implementation 
of the Shared Responsibility provisions of the ACA and HB1059 which implemented those 
provisions in the NDCC.  As you may recall, this last year the compliance date was moved 
from January 2014 to January 2015.  As a result we moved back the compliance date for 
our participating employers with the approval of the Legislative Employee Benefits 
Committee.  Consequently, our efforts were put on hold last year and are now restarting.  
Our updated implementation plan is: 
 

1. The OMB has put together a pilot project group of state agencies to work on how 
they would implement the shared responsibility rules for there agency. We are having 
a meeting with them on April 30.  BCBS will be providing a presentation on the ACA 
requirements and we will be asking each of the pilot agencies to apply these 
provisions to their work force. The goal is to see how they are able to apply the 
coverage and affordability provisions and identify issues that arise.  We will work with 
them to resolve those issues.  We hope to have worked through the entire provisions 
with them by the middle of June. 

2. On July 10 we are going to have a statewide meeting for all our employer groups at 
the Civic Center.  This will be a half-day meeting and we hope to record it for those 
who are unable to attend. The meeting will provide an overview of state law changes, 
the ACA requirements and presentations by the pilot group on their experience in 
applying these requirements to their respective workforces.   

3. On July 15 and 16 we are having a general briefing with OMB for agency/campus 
executives.   

4. The last step is going to be for PERS staff to act as a technical resource to 
employees as they work through there respective implementation efforts this fall.   

 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 22, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  PPACA Fees  
 
 
Part of the bid from BCBS for this biennium included paying the estimated fees associated 
with the Affordable Care Act (ACA).  Below are details of the ACA fees that were built into 
the $22.12 charge that was part of the bid.  The largest portion of the fee is related to the 
ACA Insurer Fee that will be applied to all premiums – state programs are not excluded from 
this fee. The fees listed below are the estimates from the RFP and a majority of the actual 
fees are still unknown.  BCBS is willing to handle the biennium with either of the following 
approaches: 

 
• Billed approach – We would bill NDPERS monthly an estimation of the fees we are 

assessed for the administration of the NDPERS program.  There would be a true up 
period at the end of the end of each year based on the final annual charges from the 
federal government. Note: This true up could be higher or lower for NDPERS than 
the fees included in the original estimates. 

• Estimation of fees – We will include the estimated fees in the fully-insured 
premiums.  BCBSND would take on the full responsibility for the fees regardless of 
actual fees assessed.  This will provide an easier way for NDPERS to budget for the 
PPACA fees.  We are happy to handle the PPACA fees however NDPERS would 
like. 

 
A detailed explanation of the PPACA fees is listed below:  
 

• Patient Centered Outcomes research tax:  $0.38 per contract per month (excludes 
Medicare contracts) 

o $1 per member in 2013  (1/2 year used) 
o $2 per member in 2014 
o $2.06 per member estimated for 2015  (1/2 year used) 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



• Transitional Reinsurance Assessments:  $8.46 per contract per month (excludes 
Medicare contracts) 

o We relied on information that came from a Society of Actuaries sponsored 
study done by Milliman 

o 0% of premium for 2013  (1/2 year used)  
o 1.36% for 2014 
o 0.72% for 2015   (1/2 year used) 

• PPACA Insurer Fee:  $13.28 per contract per month (excludes Medicare contracts) 
o We relied on work done by the Blue Cross Blue Shield Association for these 

estimates  
o 0% of premium for 2013   (1/2 year used) 
o 1.58% for 2014 
o 2.23% for 2015   (1/2 year used) 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 22, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  Long Term Care Insurance 
 
 
Background  
 
For the last couple of years we have been studying our Long Term Care benefits.  Attached 
is the memo that summarizes our efforts up to August 2013.  At that time it was decided that 
we should refer the results of our study to PERS Benefits Committee for review and 
recommendation.  At the January Board meeting we reviewed the suggestions of that 
committee.  We noted that the committee discussed the following five options on how to 
proceed: 
 

 

Options
#1 #2 #3 #4 #5

Issue an RFP Request funding
for employer 
payment of part 
of premium. For 
every $10 in premium 
support per month by 
the state, it would cost 
about $150,000 per 
month or about $3.6 
million per biennium 
(assumes 15,000 state 
employees).  Assuming 
the average classified 
salary is $42,000 per 
year each $10 is about 
.28% of salary.  A $40 
premium support 
would be about 1.14% 
of payroll.  Note: these 
numbers assume 100% 
participation

Seek to expand 
the ND credit so 
it applies to the 
existing PERS LTC

As alternative to 
offering a 
product, we 
could develop an 
approach where 
we facilitate the 
flow of 
information on 
the importance 
of this product, 
how to purchase 
it in the 
marketplace, the 
significance of 
having a 
“partnership 
product” and the 
effect of age on 
pricing. 

Try to get a 
product ( with 
medical 
underwriting) 
that could be 
marketed to 
younger 
employees and 
for which the 
credit would 
pay most of the 
premium.

194

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



It was noted that the committee generally felt that LTC was important but to request funding 
for a partial employer contribution at this time would not be a good idea since our priorities 
should be getting the retirement plan back to 100% funded status and maintaining the 
health plan.  Consequently, the general consensus of the PERS Benefits Committee was 
option #4.  At the January Board meeting, the Board agreed to move forward with Option #4 
as well, the following is from the minutes: 
 

Long Term Care Insurance 
Mr. Collins reviewed what has been discussed relating to long term care insurance 
with the Board. The key points that were discovered are: that long term care planning 
is an important consideration in planning for retirement; purchasing a long term care 
plan that is partnership qualified is key to accessing the tax credit; information from 
our consultant indicated that it would be unlikely that anyone would bid on an entirely 
voluntary plan; and that if employer paid a part of the premium and with the tax credit, 
that a group plan could draw a significant level of participation from our membership. 
This was brought before the Benefits Committee and they recommended, as an 
alternative to offering a long term care insurance product, that PERS facilitate the 
flow of information to members regarding the importance of this product, how to 
purchase it in the marketplace, and the significance of having a partnership product. 
The Board concurred on this approach and asked staff to prepare options for 
consideration.  

 
Based upon the above direction, staff has developed the following concept and plan of 
action for going forward. 
 
Concept 
 
That PERS add another category to our offering of benefits called “Ancillary Benefits”.  Long 
Term care would be our first.  The Ancillary Benefit for long term care would be the tax 
credit available to all state employees who are citizens of North Dakota.  Specifically, the 
credit equals the premiums paid during the tax year, up to a maximum credit of $250.  In the 
case of married individuals who file a joint return, where each spouse is covered by an 
eligible policy, the $250 credit limit applies to each spouse (for a total maximum credit of 
$500).  We would encourage our members to consider using this credit by branding it and 
marketing it as a PERS Ancillary Benefit to pay for long term care coverage.  The North 
Dakota Insurance Department maintains a list of approved North Dakota long term care 
plans and which ones have been approved for the partnership program that we could share 
with our members as a way to get started.  In addition, we could provide a listing of brokers 
our members could call similar to how we manage the 457 plan.   
 
Action Plan 
 
Once we embrace this as an Ancillary Benefit, then we would: 
 

1. Add this information to our website. 
2. Include this information during annual enrollment. 
3. Develop and post videos to our website about long term care. 

2 | P a g e  
 



4. Include this information in our PREP, New Employee and Mid Career Seminars. 
5. Add it our new hire kit. 
6. Consider having an annual benefits newsletter and featuring it in that publication. 
7. Have special promotions to young employees for whom the $250 annual credit could 

pay for entire policy. 
 
Future Actions 
 
If we find that the Ancillary Benefits concept is workable, we could add similar programs 
such as the “Saver Credit”, the 429 program and we could move our flex program employer 
sponsored products to this category.  This would allow us to brand all of these benefits in a 
consistent manner for communication to our members and help to make sure they know, 
understand, and if applicable, take advantage of these other programs.   
 
Board Action Requested 
 
Approve the above approach. 

3 | P a g e  
 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb       
 
DATE:   August 14, 2013  
 
SUBJECT:  Long Term Care Insurance 
 
 
Since 2012 we have looked into the long term care (LTC) program and our option to go out 
to bid.  The present product that we offer is Unum.  It is not a partnership eligible product 
and its design is old.  Since we selected this product many years ago, numerous 
improvements have been added to LTC plans including the partnership program.  Our 
product is not eligible for that program.    
 

Study Process To Date 
 
1.  April of 2012 – In April of 2012 we started our process to go out to bid.  To get 

background on the LTC market we contacted Schmidt Insurance to give a presentation.  
They attended the meeting and their presentation is Attachment #1.  We learned the 
following: 

 
a) 70% of people who reach age 65 will require long term care services. 
b) Average length of majority of LTC claims is 3.8 years. 
c) The average cost of assisted living services is $38,220, for in-home care is $43,472 

and for nursing home is $72,190. 
d) One out of 10 people who apply for LTC insurance ages 50-59 are declined, from 

ages 60-69 the decline rate doubles and decline rate for 70+ is 45%.  Worksite LTC 
can provide expanded underwriting options. 

e) North Dakota provides an annual tax credit of $250 per person for someone who 
purchases a partnership qualified product and $500 per couple.  

 
At that meeting we also reviewed the attached relating to our existing carrier. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



   
  

2. December of 2012 – with the above background we had our consultant go to work on a 
RFP for LTC.  In December of 2012 we received the draft RFP for our review and it is 
Attachment #2.  We also noted the following from our consultant relating to our RFP: 

 
I’ve delayed sending this pending responses to a Request for Information conducted by another state 
client.  That client has been with Prudential and currently covers over 10,000 participants in its group 
long term care plan.  In response to the RFI, no company indicated that it will be willing to submit a 
proposal if the state issues an RFP.  We can go ahead with your solicitation; however it is unlikely that 
any company will respond. 
 

Given the above and some questions on the RFP, it was decided to not distribute it and 
to schedule a meeting with GRS to discuss. 
 

3.  March of 2013 – in March the Board had a conference call with Bill Hickman with GRS.  
The following is from our minutes relating to that discussion: 

 
Ms. Allen reported that Mr. Hickman with Gabriel Roeder Smith was attending via conference call to 
present information regarding long term care insurance products and the RFP they recently prepared 

 

  
News from Unum regarding our long 
term care business 
Feb. 7, 2012 

  

Dear valued sales partner: 
 
After a careful and comprehensive review, we have decided to end sales of new group long 
term care contracts. Although we recognize there is a market need for products to help 
individuals pay for long term care expenses, current economic, pricing and risk factors make it 
impossible for us to meet our financial and risk management objectives. 
 
Unfortunately, we are not the only insurer to reach this conclusion as many others have now 
exited the long term care market given the combination of historically low interest rates and 
the uncertainty of risk and pricing trends. 
 
The decision to end new group long term care sales is in the best interest of all of our 
policyholders, as it allows us to sharpen our focus on the markets and products that provide 
the greatest long-term opportunity for our company and are more compatible with our financial 
and risk management objectives. 
 
This decision will not impact the high quality of service we provide to current policyholders and 
claimants. Additionally, we will continue to accept new enrollees on existing contracts.  
 
Below are additional details about the changes that will affect you: 

• As of Feb. 7, 2012, no additional group long term care quotes will be issued. 
 

• Quotes issued prior to Feb. 7, 2012, are valid for 90 days from the date they were issued. 
 

• Quotes will be considered sold if an application is signed prior to the 90-day window closing. 
 

• Unum will honor all cases that have been sold and are in the enrollment process. 
 

• New enrollees can be added to all inforce cases, according to the eligibility provisions in their 
contracts. 

 
Additional information is available here. If you have any additional questions, please contact 
your Unum service or sales representative or local manager. In addition, general questions can 
be directed to our Customer Support area at 800-227-4165, Monday through Friday from 8 
a.m. to 8 p.m. Eastern time. 
 

2 | P a g e  
 



for PERS. Mr. Hickman reported that nationwide there are only a few companies in the market that 
offer group long term care insurance products. The policy presently offered by PERS is not a group 
product since there was not sufficient interest generated to meet the minimum participation 
requirement and it is not partnership qualified. An observation is that any product offered by PERS can 
be purchased by members as effectively directly from the market.  
 
The Board discussed this and concluded that Schmidt Insurance Agency be invited to present 
additional information on long term care insurance for further consideration before the decision is 
made to do a request for proposal for our members. Chairman Strinden indicated that this will be put 
on a future agenda for further review and discussion.  
 

4.  June of 2013 - At his meeting Gene Schmidt of SIA presented information to the Board.  
Their firm specializes in Long Term Care products nationally and they have been active 
in this area for many years.  In inviting him, I did share with him one of the issues we had 
been struggling with: 

 
As I mentioned we are having a difficult time determining what value we can bring to our members by offering a 
PERS sponsored LTC plan.  That is a group plan, if available, seems to be more expensive for a majority of our 
members compared to what they can buy on their own in the marketplace.  If that is the case it may be better for 
our members to purchase the product through the existing distribution system than us.  Your perspective will be 
very helpful so thanks again for coming to our meeting. 
 

Attachment #3 is copy of his presentation.  Some of the things we learned from his 
presentation were: 
 

a) Gender pricing has entered the market and underwriting requirements have been 
enhanced. 

b) Relating to gender pricing: 
a. Females incurred 67% of claims and 69% of benefit dollars 
b. Home Care incidence rates for females is more than double that for males 
c. Mortality for males averages 33% greater than for females 

c) The cost of care is increasing: 
a. The national average monthly rate for a semi-private nursing home is up 4.5% 

to $76,285* 
b. The national average monthly rate for an assisted living facility is up 5% to 

$40,200* 
c. The national average daily rate for adult day care is up 4.5% to $69 * 
d. $750,000 projected average cost of three years of care in 30 years**  

d) Underwriting requirements have been substantially increased for individual policies 
however for group policies they can be significantly less.  He shared the following to 
demonstrate the difference: 

3 | P a g e  
 



 
 

 
 
As shown in the above, if you are in a group policy you only need to answer the questions in 
Section A or A&B; however, if you are purchasing an individual product you go through full 
underwriting, you need to answer all the questions. Consequently, Mr. Schmidt noted that a 
group plan can bring a lot of value to its employees by having an abbreviated underwriting 
form.  However, he did note that this all depends on volume. Companies look at volume for 
pricing. He couldn’t give us a price because he would have to send the census in and show 
how many people are involved and what percentage they think will be insured. The 
percentage participating is going to be based on if the state will pay anything toward the 
premium or not.  Concerning premium, he indicated the greater the level of employer 
support the greater the level of participation which will drive volume and overall 
pricing/underwriting for the group.  Mr. Schmidt estimated between the tax credit and $50 
per employee per month, an average age of 40, probably could buy $100,000 to $150,000 
worth of coverage which would be inflation indexed. This would be $150 a day plan for a 
total of $150,000 worth of coverage. 
 
5.  What are the key points that we have discovered. 

a. LTC planning is an important consideration in planning for retirement.   
b. Purchasing a LTC plan that is “partnership” qualified is the key to accessing the 

tax credit. 
c. The information from GRS indicated that an entirely voluntary plan (fully paid by 

the employee) would likely not get any interest in the market.  Also there would 
likely be no preferencial underwriting.  With this understanding, an employee 
could buy a product just as effectively in the individual market directly from a local 
agent than through us. 

d. That if the employer paid a part of the premium and with the tax credit a group 
plan could likely draw a significant level of participation from its membership 
which would: 

 
4 | P a g e  

 



i. Reduce the underwriting requirement making the plan more accessible 
ii. Help with the overall pricing 

 
e. For every $10 in premium support per month by the state, it would cost about 

$150,000 per month or about $3.6 million per biennium (assumes 15,000 state 
employees).  Assuming the average classified salary is $42,000 per year each 
$10 is about .28% of salary.  A $40 premium support would be about 1.14% of 
payroll.  Note: these numbers assume 100% participation.  

 
Options For Going Forward 

 
1. Move forward with the RFP from GRS.  However, based upon the information received 

we will likely not get any group plan offers. 
 

2. Accept the offer from Schmidt Insurance Agency and provide them census information 
on our plan and get a quote from one of their affiliated LTC firms.  As part of this we 
would need to also supply them information on proposed employer premium 
participation.  This information could be shared with the PERS Benefits Committee to get 
their recommendation for you about adding such a benefit.  After review of this 
information and any recommendation from the Benefits Committee, consideration could 
be given to preparing a proposed bill to be submitted to the Legislative Employee 
Benefits Committee early next year. 
 

3. The above information, not including the information in #2 above could be referred to the 
PERS Benefits Committee which will be meeting this fall.  The Committee could discuss 
the information you have received thus far and share with you their thoughts. After 
hearing from them you could either move forward with the offer from Schmidt Insurance 
Agency or you could decide if you want to submit a proposed bill or not based upon the 
information received thus far and any information from the Benefits Committee. 
 

4. You could decide not go forward with an RFP based upon the following: 
a. That it would not be feasible to request funding for a LTC premium benefit based 

upon the costs and the needs for funding in the other core benefits 
b. That without an employer premium payment, PERS cannot add any value to the 

member in terms of underwriting or premiums that they could not get directly from 
a local agent. 

 
As alternative to offering a product, we could develop an approach where we facilitate the 
flow of information on the importance of this product, how to purchase it in the marketplace, 
the significance of having a “partnership product” and the effect of age on pricing.  We could 
add this to our PREP seminars and our new seminar that will be rolled out next year 
oriented to younger members about the importance of planning for retirement.  In addition, 
we could do a web video and put it on our web site. 
   
Board Action Requested 
 
Provide guidance on how to proceed with the LTC effort. 

5 | P a g e  
 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 16, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  HIPAA Business Associate Agreement with BCBS 
 
 
Attached is an updated HIPAA Business Associate Agreement with BCBSND.  
 
BCBS has proposed changes which have been reviewed by staff and Jan.  
 
We are requesting approval of this agreement.  
 
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



Business Associate Agreement 
(Revised 10-2013) 

 
This Business Associate Agreement, which is an addendum to the underlying contract, 
is entered into by and between, the North Dakota Public Employees Retirement System 
(“NDPERS”) and Blue Cross Blue Shield of North Dakota (BCBSND), 4510 13th Avenue 
SW, Fargo, ND  58121-0001.    
 
1. Definitions  

a. Terms used, but not otherwise defined, in this Agreement have 
the same meaning as those terms in the HIPAA Privacy Rule, 45 
C.F.R. Part 160 and Part 164, Subparts A and E, and the HIPAA 
Security rule, 45 C.F.R., pt. 164, subpart C. 

b. Business Associate. “Business Associate” means BCBSND. 
c. Covered Entity. “Covered Entity” means the North Dakota Public 

Employees Retirement System Health Plans.  
d. PHI and ePHI.  "PHI" means Protected Health Information; "ePHI" 

means Electronic Protected Health Information. 

2. Obligations of Business Associate.   
 
2.1. The Business Associate agrees: 

a. To use or disclose PHI and ePHI only as permitted or required by this Agreement 
or as Required by Law. 

b. To use appropriate safeguards and security measures to prevent use or 
disclosure of the PHI and ePHI other than as provided for by this Agreement, and 
to comply with all security requirements of the HIPAA Security rule.  

c. To implement administrative, physical, and technical safeguards that reasonably 
and appropriately protect the confidentiality, integrity, and availability of ePHI that 
it creates, receives, maintains or transmits on behalf of the Covered Entity as 
required by the HIPAA Security rule. 

d. To mitigate, to the extent practicable, any harmful effect that is known to 
Business Associate of a use or disclosure of PHI or ePHI by Business Associate 
in violation of the requirements of this Agreement.   

e. To report to Covered Entity (1) any use or disclosure of the PHI not provided for 
by this Agreement, and (2) any “security incident” as defined in 45 C.F.R. § 
164.304 involving ePHI,attempted or successful unauthorized access, use, 
disclosure, modification, or destruction of Covered Entity’s information systems 
(Security Incident) of which it becomes aware without unreasonable delay and in 
any case within thirty (30) days from the date after discovery and provide the 
Covered Entity with a written notification that complies with 45 C.F.R. § 164.410 
which shall include the following information: 

i. to the extent possible, the identification of each individual whose 
Unsecured Protected Health Information has been, or is reasonably 
believed by the Business Associate to have been, accessed, acquired 
or disclosed during the breach;  

ii. a brief description of what happened; 
iii. the date of discovery of the breach and date of the breach; 
iv. the nature of the Protected Health Information that was involved; 

 1 



v. identify of any person who received the non-permitted Protected 
Health Information; 

vi. any steps individuals should take to protect themselves from potential 
harm resulting from the breach;  

vii. a brief description of what the Business Associate is doing to 
investigate the breach, to mitigate harm to individuals, and to protect 
against any further breaches; and 

viii. any other available information that the Covered Entity is required to 
include in notification to an individual under 45 C.F.R. § 164.404(c) at 
the time of the notification to the State required by this subsection or 
promptly thereafter as information becomes available. 

With regard to attempted unauthorized access, use, etc., Business Associate and 
Covered Entity recognize and agree that the significant number or meaningless 
attempts to, without authorization, access, use, disclsose, modify or destroy 
Electronic PHI will make real-time reporting formidable.  Therefore, Business 
Associate and Covered Entity agree to the following reporting procedures for 
Security Incidents that result in unauthorized access, use, disclosure, 
modification or destruction of information or interference with system operations 
(Successful Security Incidents) and for Security Incidents that do not so result 
(Unsuccessful Security Incidents). 
 

For Unsuccessful Security Incidents, Business Associate and Noridian agree 
that this Agreement constitutes notice from Business Associate of such 
Unsuccessful Security Incidents.  By way of example, Noridian and 
Business Associate consider the following to be illustrative of 
Unsuccessful Security Incidents when they do not result in unauthorized 
access, use, disclosure, modification, or destruction of Electronic PHI or 
interference with an information system:  

1.     Pings on Business Associate's firewall, 
2.     Port scans, 
3.     Attempts to log on to a system or enter a database with an invalid 

password or username,  
4.     Denial-of-service attacks that do not result in a server being taken 

off-line, and 
5. Malware (e.g., worms, viruses). 
6. Internal security breaches 
7. Software/hardware failures 

 
f. With respect to any use or disclosure of Unsecured Protected Health Information 

not permitted by the Privacy Rule that is caused by the Business Associate’s 
failure to comply with one or more of its obligations under this Agreement, the 
Business Associate agrees to pay its reasonable share of cost-based fees 
associated with activities the Covered Entity must undertake to meet its 
notification obligations under the HIPAA Rules and any other security breach 
notification laws; 

g. Ensure that any agent or subcontractor that creates, receives, maintains, or 
transmits electronic PHI on behalf of the Business Associate agree to comply 

 2 



with the same restrictions and conditions that apply through this Agreement to 
the Business Associate. 

h. To make available to the Secretary of Health and Human Services the Business 
Associate’s internal practices, books, and records, including policies and 
procedures relating to the use and disclosure of PHI and ePHI received from, or 
created or received by Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity, for the 
purpose of determining the Covered Entity’s compliance with the HIPAA Privacy 
Rule, subject to any applicable legal privileges. 

i. To document the disclosure of PHI related to any disclosure of PHI as would be 
required for Covered Entity to respond to a request by an Individual for an 
accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.528.  

j. To provide to Covered Entity within 15 days of a written notice from Covered 
Entity, information necessary to permit the Covered Entity to respond to a 
request by an Individual for an accounting of disclosures of PHI in accordance 
with 45 C.F.R. § 164.528.  

k. To provide, within 10 days of receiving a written request, information necessary 
for the Covered Entity to respond to an Individual’s request for access to PHI 
about himself or herself, in the event that PHI in the Business Associate’s 
possession constitutes a Designated Record Set. 

l. Make amendments(s) to PHI in a designated record set as directed or agreed by 
by the Covered Entity pursuant to 45 C.F.R. § 164.526 or take other measures 
as necessary to satisfy the covered entity’s obligations under that section of law. 

3. Permitted Uses and Disclosures by Business Associate  
 
3.1. General Use and Disclosure Provisions  
Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may Use or Disclose 
PHI and ePHI to perform functions, activities, or services for, or on behalf of, Covered 
Entity, provided that such use or disclosure would not violate the Privacy Rule or the 
Security Rule if done by Covered Entity or the minimum necessary policies and 
procedures of the Covered Entity. 
 
 
3.2. Specific Use and Disclosure Provisions 

Except as otherwise limited in this Agreement, Business Associate may use PHI and 
ePHI: 

a. For the proper management and administration of the Business Associate, 
provided that disclosures are Required By Law, or Business Associate obtains 
reasonable assurances from the person to whom the information is disclosed that 
it will remain confidential and used or further disclosed only as Required By Law 
or for the purpose for which it was disclosed to the person, and the person 
notifies the Business Associate of any instances of which it is aware in which the 
confidentiality of the information has been breached. 

b. To provide Data Aggregation services to Covered Entity as permitted by 45 
C.F.R. § 164.504(e)(2)(i)(B), but Business Associate may not disclose the PHI or 
ePHI  of the Covered Entity to any other client of the Business Associate without 
the written authorization of the covered entity Covered Entity. 

 3 



c. To report violations of law to appropriate Federal and State authorities, 
consistent with 45 C.F.R. §§ 164.304 and 164.502(j)(1). 

4. Obligations of Covered Entity  

4.1. Provisions for Covered Entity to Inform Business Associate of Privacy Practices and 
Restrictions 

Covered Entity shall notify Business Associate of: 

a. Any limitation(s) in its notice of privacy practices of Covered Entity in accordance 
with 45 C.F.R. § 164.520, to the extent that any such limitation may affect 
Business Associate's use or disclosure of PHI.  

b. Any changes in, or revocation of, permission by an Individual to use or disclose 
PHI, to the extent that any such changes may affect Business Associate's use or 
disclosure of PHI.  

c. Any restriction to the use or disclosure of PHI that Covered Entity has agreed to 
in accordance with 45 C.F.R. § 164.522, to the extent that any such restriction 
may affect Business Associate’s use or disclosure of PHI.  

4.2. Additional Obligations of Covered Entity.  Covered Entity agrees that it: 

a. Has included, and will include, in the Covered Entity’s Notice of Privacy 
Practices required by the Privacy Rule that the Covered Entity may disclose PHI 
for Health Care Operations purposes. 

b. Has obtained, and will obtain, from Individuals any consents, authorizations 
and other permissions necessary or required by laws applicable to the Covered 
Entity for Business Associate and the Covered Entity to fulfill their obligations 
under the Underlying Agreement and this Agreement. 

  

 4 



c. Will promptly notify Business Associate in writing of any restrictions on the Use 
and Disclosure of PHI about Individuals that the Covered Entity has agreed to 
that may affect Business Associate’s ability to perform its obligations under the 
Underlying Agreement or this Agreement. 

d. Will promptly notify Business Associate in writing of any change in, or revocation 
of, permission by an Individual to Use or Disclose PHI, if the change or 
revocation may affect Business Associate’s ability to perform its obligations 
under the Underlying Agreement or this Agreement. 

4.2. Permissible Requests by Covered Entity  
Covered Entity may not request Business Associate to use or disclose PHI in any 
manner that would not be permissible under the Privacy Rule or the Security Rule if 
done by Covered Entity, except that the Business Associate may use or disclose PHI 
and ePHI for management and administrative activities of Business Associate.  
 
5. Term and Termination  

a. Term. The Term of this Agreement shall be effective as of October 1, 2013 and 
shall terminate when all of the PHI and ePHI provided by Covered Entity to 
Business Associate, or created or received by Business Associate on behalf of 
Covered Entity, is destroyed or returned to Covered Entity, or, if it is infeasible to 
return or destroy PHI and ePHI, protections are extended to any such 
information, in accordance with the termination provisions in this Section.  

b. Automatic Termination. This Agreement will automatically terminate upon the 
termination or expiration of the Underlying Agreement. 

c. Termination for Cause. Upon Covered Entity's knowledge of a material breach by 
Business Associate, Covered Entity shall either:  

1. Provide an opportunity for Business Associate to cure the breach or end 
the violation and terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement 
if Business Associate does not cure the breach or end the violation within 
the time specified by Covered Entity;  

2. Immediately terminate this Agreement and the Underlying Agreement if 
Business Associate has breached a material term of this Agreement and 
cure is not possible; or  

3. If neither termination nor cure is feasible, Covered Entity shall report the 
violation to the Secretary.  

d. Effect of Termination.  
1. Except as provided in paragraph (2) of this subsection, upon termination 

of this Agreement, for any reason, Business Associate shall return or 
destroy all PHI received from Covered Entity, or created or received by 
Business Associate on behalf of Covered Entity.  This provision shall 
apply to PHI and ePHI that is in the possession of subcontractors or 
agents of Business Associate.  Business Associate shall retain no copies 
of the PHI or ePHI. 

2. In the event that Business Associate determines that returning or 
destroying the PHI or ePHI is not feasible, Business Associate shall 
provide to Covered Entity notification of the conditions that make return or 
destruction infeasible. Upon explicit written agreement of Covered Entity  

 5 



3.2. that return or destruction of PHI or ePHI is not feasible, Business 
Associate shall extend the protections of this Agreement to that PHI and 
ePHI and limit further uses and disclosures of any such PHI and ePHI to 
those purposes that make the return or destruction infeasible, for so long 
as Business Associate maintains that PHI or ePHI.  

6. Miscellaneous  

a. Regulatory References. A reference in this Agreement to a section in the HIPAA 
Privacy or Security Rule means the section as in effect or as amended.  

b. Amendment. The Parties agree to take such action as is necessary to amend this 
Agreement from time to time as is necessary for Covered Entity to comply with 
the requirements of the Privacy Rule, the Security Rule, and the Health 
Insurance Portability and Accountability Act of 1996, Pub. L. No. 104-191.  

c. Survival. The respective rights and obligations of Business Associate under 
Section 5.c, related to “Effect of Termination,” of this Agreement shall survive the 
termination of this Agreement.  

d. Interpretation. Any ambiguity in this Agreement shall be resolved to permit 
Covered Entity to comply with the Privacy and Security Rules.   

e. No Third Party Beneficiaries. Nothing express or implied in this Agreement is 
intended to confer, nor shall anything this Agreement confer, upon any person 
other than the parties and their respective successors or assigns, any rights, 
remedies, obligations or liabilities whatsoever. 

f. Applicable Law and Venue. This Business Associate Agreement is governed by 
and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of North Dakota.  Any 
action commenced to enforce this Contract must be brought in the District Court 
of Burleigh County, North Dakota. 

g. Business Associate agrees to comply with all the requirements imposed on a 
business associate under Title XIII of the American Recovery and Reinvestment 
Act of 2009, the Health Information Technology for Economic and Clinical Health 
(HI-TECH) Act, and, at the request of NDPERS, to agree to any reasonable 
modification of this agreement required to conform the agreement to any Model 
Business Associate Agreement published by the Department of Health and 
Human Services. 

7. Entire Agreement 
This Agreement contains all of the agreements and understandings between the parties 
with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement.  No agreement or other 
understanding in any way modifying the terms of this Agreement will be binding unless 
made in writing as a modification or amendment to this Agreement and executed by both 
parties. 
 
 
  

 6 



IN WITNESS OF THIS, NDPERS [CE] and BCBSND [BA] agree to and intend to be 
legally bound by all terms and conditions set forth above and hereby execute this 
Agreement as of the effective date set forth above. 
 
 
For Covered Entity:     For Business Associate: 
 
 
 
______________________________  ______________________________ 
Sparb Collins, Executive Director  Signature 
ND Public Employees Retirement System 
      ______________________________ 
       Printed Name 
 

  ______________________________ 
      Title 
 
______________________________ ______________________________  
Date      Date   

 7 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS@state.nd.us ●  discovernd.com/NDPERS 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Kathy & Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 21, 2014   
 
SUBJECT:  Delta Dental Plan Renewal  
 
 
Effective January 1, 2013, Delta Dental of Minnesota was awarded the bid for the group dental plan.  
The contract expires December 31, 2014. We have included the Delta Dental renewal proposal 
effective January 1, 2015.  Delta proposed two options for the Board’s consideration: 
 

• A premium neutral proposal for a one-year period from January 1, 2015 through 
December 31, 2015. 

 
• A two-year proposal with a 2% premium increase for the period January 1, 2015 

through December 31, 2016.  Following are the current rates and the proposed 
renewal rates for this option: 

 
      Current     Proposed 1/1/2015 
  Emp Only  $ 38.26   $ 39.04 
  Emp + Spouse $ 73.84   $ 75.32 
  Emp + Child(ren)     $ 85.72   $ 87.44 
  Emp + Family          $122.08   $124.52 

 
The Board has the option to have Deloitte conduct a formal analysis and evaluation of the Delta 
Dental renewal.  If so directed, staff will request Deloitte’s evaluation be available for review at the 
May 22nd meeting at which time the Board can determine whether to accept one of the proposals, 
further negotiate with Delta Dental, or go out to bid for dental plan services.  The Board may also 
consider whether representatives of Delta Dental be present or available for the May 22 meeting to 
respond to any questions. 
 
 
BOARD ACTION REQUESTED 
 

• Determine whether to have Deloitte conduct an evaluation of the Delta Dental renewal 
proposal. 

• Whether representatives of Delta Dental should be available for the May 22 meeting. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



























 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 22, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  House Bill 1443 
 
This last session House Bill 1443 was passed.  The bill provides: 
 

 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



The State Department of Health has taken the lead in putting the report together.  Attached 
is the draft narrative PERS is providing for the report.  Please review pages 16, 17 and 18 
as these are draft ideas for these programs going forward.  I appreciate your guidance at 
the Board meeting to insure we are moving in the right direction for the report.   



NDPERS Draft Narratives – 1443 

Prevalence of Diabetes in the PERS Population: 

 

1 

 



 

 

 
2 

 



Cost of Diabetes to the PERS Plan: 

 

 

3 

 



 

PERS Efforts Relating to Diabetes 
The NDPERS strategy relating to Diabetes is centered around our health insurance provider BCBS and 
also the “About the Patient” program.  The following discusses each. 

BCBS Efforts: 

BCBS efforts for the PERS Plan relating to diabetes are part of three programs: 1) the MediQHome 
Program, 2) The Case management program and 3) HealthBlue program.   

MediQHome 

MediQHome is a collaborative program between Blue Cross Blue Shield of ND (BCBSND) and medical 
providers across the state of ND.  The program provides financial incentives to clinicians and 
organizations to support the patient centered medical home methodology of care.  BCBSND provides a 
semiannual care management fee payment to compensate for care coordination and better 
management of chronic conditions which are otherwise not accounted for in a fee for service payment 
model.  The care management fees are paid using a tiered approach that is tied to patient outcomes.  
The MediQHome program also allows the provider access to a population health platform that allows 
the medical providers to identify overall how their population of patients is doing.  It also allows them to 
see gaps in care based on medical guidelines that are individualized to each patient and their chronic 
disease. 

 

4 

 



Diabetes is one of the targeted chronic conditions in the MediQHome program. The care management 
fee paid to providers is calculated based on how well the provider cares for their patients with diabetes, 
high blood pressure, and coronary artery disease (pay for performance).  Providers are asked to make 
sure that these patients meet “optimal care” in the specific disease categories.  For diabetes, optimal 
care means: 

• HgA1c <8  (this is a lab value that indicates blood sugar control over a longer time period) 
• Blood Pressure <140/90 
• LDL <100 (bad cholesterol) 
• Tobacco free 

The MDInsight platform allows the provider to be able to quickly see if all of these “optimal care” 
measures have been completed for each patient.  It also allows them to use the platform to look for a 
certain group of patients who may need follow up due to these measures being overdue or out of range.  
This helps them to track their diabetes patients to make sure they are receiving 

Case Management 

The prevalence of chronic conditions, such as diabetes, is growing and the bulk of healthcare 
expenditures are used to treat conditions such as these. Case Management provides members of higher 
risk with telephonic outreach to enhance a Member’s knowledge about their condition and also 
provides collaboration between the Member and healthcare team. Using evidence-based principles, an 
action plan is developed based on the Member’s disease state, risk level and goals. Case Management 
provides ongoing support throughout the Member’s continuum of care closing out identified gaps of 
care, encouraging a healthy lifestyle and educating the Member about their chronic condition. Diabetics 
in the Case Management Program will receive education materials and are also reviewed to identify 
gaps in care. Recommended diabetes care management include a yearly office visit, A1C every 3-12 
months, lipid panel every 12 months, microalbumin every 12 months and dilated eye exam every 12 
months. 

HealthyBlue 

HealthyBlue (online Wellness portal) is available to all NDPERS members, including those who have self 
reported they are diabetic.  Members can engage in disease specific educational workshops, talk to 
wellness experts, track exercise, nutrition and medications.  They can do this either online or on a 
mobile device and earn rewards for their engagement. 

About the Patient Program Efforts: 

The Uniform Group Insurance Program-Collaborative Drug Therapy Program in accordance with section 
54-52.1-17 of the North Dakota Century code purpose is to improve the health of individuals with 
diabetes in order to manage health care expenditures through face-to-face collaborative drug therapy 
services by pharmacists and certified diabetes educators.  For covered individuals waived or reduced co-
payment for diabetes treatment drugs and supplies are provided as an incentive for program 
participation. The North Dakota Pharmacist Association or specified delegate currently About the 
Patient facilitates patient curriculum based on national standards for diabetes care, enrollment 
procedures, documentation of clinical encounters, and assess economic/clinical outcomes.  Funding of 

5 

 



program is through the uniform group insurance program and if necessary an additional charge on the 
policy premium for medical and hospital benefits coverage may be added up to two dollars per month. 

 

The About The Patient Program has been administering the Diabetes Management Program since July of 
2008.  A cost analysis of the Diabetes Management Program was conducted by the Center for Health 
Promotion and Prevention Research, University of North Dakota School of Medicine and Health Sciences 
in November of 2010.  Return on investment calculation demonstrated a $71.14 pmpm health cost 
savings ($2.34 saved for every $1.00 spent for the program).  Funding and program administration by 
About The Patient is evaluated biannually and current funding is through June 2015. 

 

6 

 



Program Description 
The Diabetes Management Program is an opt-in program for North Dakota Public Employee 
Retirement System beneficiaries with diabetes. On a monthly basis newly eligible patients are 
sent a letter explaining the program as well as a wellness enrollment form.  The wellness 
enrollment form allows patients to choose one of 50 community pharmacy locations across 
North Dakota for face-to-face program participation. Patients are eligible for three visits within 
the first year and two visits per year thereafter.   By actively partaking in the program patients 
receive reimbursement of co-pays on diabetes medications, ACE inhibitors and testing supplies 
on a quarterly basis. The patient curriculum is based on the seven self-care behaviors identified 
by the American Association of Diabetes Educators and principles of medication therapy 
management as outlined by the American Pharmacist Association.  Patients are seen by a 
health professional, currently a community pharmacist, who has completed additional training 
in diabetes management outside of their terminal degree and must document continuing 
education in this area on an annual basis.  All patient clinical encounters are documented and 
billed using the North Dakota Pharmacy Services Corporation electronic medical record 
software MTM Express™.   

 

Interventions 
 

Demographic 
From third quarter of 2013 through first quarter of 2014, 52% of the actively participating patients 
are male.  Age distribution is demonstrated below: 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
National and current patient trends are demonstrating that younger people are being diagnosed 
with Diabetes.   This creates great opportunities for early disease management to prevent long term 
costly complications. 
 
Pharmacist Interventions 
Within the 9 month reporting period there were 121 interventions made by the providers in 
collaboration with the patients in order to manage diabetes and prevent costly complication.  
Descriptions of intervention are listed below:  

 

2011 

 

2013-2014 

7 

 

2% 

31% 

41% 

11% 

11% 

4% 

70's
60's
50's
40's
30's
20's

16% 

8% 

44% 

32% 30's

40's

50's

60's



 
The most common reason for providing additional patient education was regarding insulin. 

The pharmacist was able to clarify how the patient should be taking their insulin, especially the rapid 
acting formulations.   

The most common recommendations for starting medication related to ACE inhibitor use for 
renal protection or untreated dyslipidemia.   Most increase dose recommendations were for insulin 
where 50% were for basal insulin and 50% for rapid insulin. 

In contrast to 2011 interventions, pharmacists now are optimizing medication use and 
starting to identify and address barriers to medication adherence compared to general education 
about the medications.   

 
 
Patient Satisfaction with Program 
Based on a 5 point Likert scale where 5 is excellent and 1 is poor. 
                Current 2011 

1.) Professional appearance of the provider      5.0 4.7 
2.) Appearance of the meeting area       4.8 4.3 
3.) System for scheduling your appointment      4.8 4.7 
4.) The provider’s interest in your health      4.9 4.7 
5.) How well the provider helps you manage your medications    4.3 4.3 
6.) How well the provider explains possible side effects    4.1 4.3 
7.) The provider’s efforts to solve problems that you have with your medications 4.3 4.3 
8.) The responsibility that the provider assumes for your drug therapy   4.2 4.3 
9.) Ability of the provider to answer your questions about your medications  4.4 4.3 
10.) Ability of the provider to answer your questions about your health problems 4.4 4.3 

30% 

21% 20% 

10% 

10% 

5% 

2% 2% 
Provide Additional Patient Education

Start Additional Medication

Change Dose - Increase

Continue Current Treatment

Discontinue Medication

Change Dose - Decrease

Remove Patient Barrier

Therapeutic Interchange

1.1% 3.2% 3.2% 

6.4% 

14.9% 

18.1% 
21.3% 

31.9% 

Generic Substitution

Change Dose - Decrease

Start Additional Medication

Continue Current Treatment

Start Different Medication

Discontinue Medication

Provide Additional Patient Education

Change Dose - Increase

8 

 



11.) The provider’s efforts to help you improve your health or stay healthy  4.9 4.7 
12.)  The program services overall       4.3 4.7 
13.) Ability of the provider to see you at your scheduled time    4.8 4.3 
14.) Courtesy and professionalism of the staff      5.0 4.7 
15.) Follow-up after the appointment       4.8 4.3 
16.) The educational materials provided      4.9 4.3 

Satisfaction among participants in the program remains high.   
 

 
 
 
  

9 

 



Trends and Savings 
Face to Face Diabetes Management provided by pharmacist to NDPERS beneficiaries over 
24 months (n= 346).  Initial cost analysis 2008-2010. 

Demographics  

Mean Age 53.7 years  

Type 2 Diabetes 72% 

Average # of Medical Conditions 6.1 

Average # of Medications 10.3 

Average # of Pharmacist Identified Medication Related Problems 3.4 

 
Overall health care expenditure monthly savings of $71.14 per program participant 
compared to control. For every $1.00 spent (administrative expensive and patient 
incentives) on the Diabetes Program NDPERS saved $2.34.  Sample size at time of analysis 
was able to identify trends however was too small to determine statistical significance. 

   
In worldwide studies,  lower A1C is correlated with better prevention of microvascular 
complications such as Kidney Disease and  Blindness.  

  

10 

 



 

 

 

Levels of Services July 2011 - June 2013 

11 

 



 

Marketing: 
In 2008 when the program was first launched a letter to all eligible patients as well as a follow up 
postcard was delivered and over 200 individuals opted into the program that year.  Current recruitment 
occurs on a monthly basis where newly eligible patients are sent a letter and a wellness enrollment 
form that lists all the program provider locations.   In 2012, current marketing strategy engaged ~4% of 
the newly eligible patients. 

 
 
Marketing efforts from the fourth quarter 2013 through first quarter 2014 have increased enrollment.  
Currently have 198 (5.6% of total eligible population) patients with signed wellness forms.  We are 
currently half way to our activation goal for the 2013-2015 biennium. 

  

Direct Marketing to Eligible Patients 2013-2014 
During the fourth quarter of 2013 a direct to consumer marketing campaign was launched with a goal to activate 10% of 
the eligible patient population over the next biennium.  Newly eligible patients will continue to receive a letter and 
enrollment form on a monthly basis.  In addition, all eligible patients will receive a letter explaining the program along 
with enrollment form and two follow up postcards. 
    

 Letter/Enrollment form Postcard 1 Postcard 2 

Newly Eligible Monthly   
 
All Eligible Patients Last 
Names Starting with A-L  

 
Fourth Quarter 2013 
Oct- A-D 
Nov- E-H 
Dec-I-L 

 
First Quarter 2014 
Jan-A-D 
Feb-E-H 
Mar-I-L 

 
Second Quarter 2014 
Apr-A-D 
May-E-H 
Jun-I-L 

All Eligible Patients Last 
Names Starting with M-Z 

First Quarter 2014 
Jan-M-P 
Feb-Q-T 
Mar-U-Z 

Second Quarter 2014 
Apr-M-P 
May-Q-T 
June-U-Z 

Third Quarter 2014 
Jul-M-P 
Aug-Q-T 
Sep-U-Z 

 

 

12 

 



 

Diabetes Management Program 
 

Date 
 

 

Dear Member , 
 

Living with daily health concerns can affect all parts of your life. North Dakota Public 
Employees Retirement System (NDPERS) knows that the care you receive now is 
important to your future health. Having a health care team (Primary care Provider, 
Diabetes Educator, Clinical Pharmacist, and Dietician) is the best way to manage diabetes. 
We have joined forces with About the Patient to provide free clinical pharmacy services 
to round out your health care team. The best part is that it may be as simple at spending 
a little extra time when you fill your prescription at your local pharmacy, if they are a 
provider. 
 

 

We know your time is valuable. Our way of thanking you for taking part in this 
program is to refund co- pays for diabetes medications, testing supplies and certain 
medicines used for kidney safety every six months while in the program. 
 

 

Taking part in the program is easy. Call 1-888-326-4657 to sign up over the phone or 
visit the About The Patient website: www.About The Patient.net to download the 
enrollment form. At your convenience, schedule a one-on-one visit with a pharmacist 
specially trained in diabetes. A list of diabetes management programs in your area is 
listed on the back of this letter. 
 

 

You do not need to be a patient or customer at the location of the program.  Your 
medications will continue to be covered through any pharmacy of your choice. Because 
the diabetes management program is customized to your needs, you can opt out at any 
time. 

 

After all, it is all about you and your health.  Now is the best time to 
manage your diabetes. Hope to hear from you soon! 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Wendy Brown Pharm.D, PA-C, AE-C  
Clinical Coordinator 

  

Letter   

13 

 



 

 

14 

 



 

  

Postcard 1 

  

Postcard 2 

  

15 

 



 

 

Budget 

Diabetes efforts associated with our health carrier BCBS are part of the health premiums paid 
to BCBS.  The About the Patient program is a separate program pursuant to HB 1433 and the 
following is the 2011-13 expenses and the projected 2013 -15 expenses: 

 

 

 

 

The following is our project budget for this program for the 2015-2017 biennium which would funded 
from the PERS health plan: 

 

I 

Proposed Level of Services  
July 2015-June 2017 

 

  July2015-June 2017 
Direct Program Cost Jan 

Provider Visits $132,000.00 
Patient Incentives $43,000.00 
Subtotal $175,000.00 

 

Administration Costs Jan 
Subtotal $20,000.00 

 

Marketing Costs Jan 
Direct to consumer mailings 
In-pharmacy marketing 

$5000.00 

Actual
July 2011 - June 2013 Biennium
Quarterly Fees: 18,000$          
Copayments: 13,887$          
Admin Fee: 10,000$          

41,887$          

Latest Projection
July 2013 - June 2015 Biennium
Estimated Quarterly Fees: 130,160$       
Estimated Copayments: 43,345$          
Admin Fee: 25,000$          

198,505$       

Expense estimates are for serving 
~200 patients (~5% participation rate) 
over the next biennium.   Each 
patient would be eligible to receive a 
Comprehensive Medication Review 
(CMR-$400.00) and up to 2 Targeted 
Medication Reviews (TMR-$80.00) 
the first year and one CMR ($200.00) 
and one TMR ($80.00) in for any 

b t  f ti i ti  i  
    

16 

 



Subtotal $5000.00 

 

TOTAL Biennial Expenses  $200,000.00 

 

In-kind from NDPhA and NDSU: Telephone (maintaining toll free direct number for patients), office 
space, office supplies, Training/Credentialing/Certification of providers, patient curriculum, Clinical 
Coordinator, Data Analysis. 

 

Action Steps for 2015-2017 

1. Maintain Current Efforts in the Health Plan 

Through our carrier it is our intent to continue efforts such as the MediQ Home program and 
case management efforts relating to diabetes.  In addition we will maintain our wellness 
program into 2015-17.  As part of that program we will look to new ways to interact with those 
with diabetes through the Health Assessment functionality.  In addition will add to wellness 
program seminars that are available to our participating employers a program on diabeties. 

2. Continue the “About the Patient” Program 
 
In 2015 -17 we will continue the “About the Patient” Program.  In addition to continuing the 
program we would: 

a. In late 2015 & early 2016 we would do another study of the program similar to the one 
we previously did.  The purpose of this study would be assess the programs 
effectiveness and identify “best practices”. 

b. The results of this study could serve as a basis for replicating the program in other 
settings such as other employers or state agencies 

c. PERS will set up committee of those entities identify in HB 1443 to serve as an advisory 
group for this program going forward.  The purpose of this group would be to share 
information on this program and identify opportunities. 

3. Other PERS strategic goals going forward: 

17 

 



 

 

18 

 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 22, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  DOMA Update 
 
 
Jan will review the attached guidance from the IRS relating to DOMA at 
the April meeting.  
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



Application of the Windsor Decision and Rev. Rul. 2013-17 to Qualified 
Retirement Plans

Notice 2014-19 

I. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this notice is to provide guidance on the application (including the 
retroactive application) of the decision in United States v. Windsor, 570 U.S. ___, 133 S. 
Ct. 2675 (2013), and the holdings of Rev. Rul. 2013-17, 2013-38 I.R.B. 201 (Sept. 16, 
2013), to retirement plans qualified under section 401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code 
(Code).

II. BACKGROUND 

01.  Qualified Retirement Plan Rules Relating to Married Participants 

Several Code sections provide special rules with respect to married participants in 
qualified retirement plans, including, but not limited to, the following:

• Under section 401(a)(11), certain qualified retirement plans must provide a 
qualified joint and survivor annuity (QJSA) upon retirement to married 
participants (and generally must provide a qualified preretirement survivor 
annuity (QPSA) to the surviving spouse of a married participant who dies before 
retirement).  If a plan is subject to these rules, the QJSA (or QPSA) may be 
waived by a married participant only with spousal consent pursuant to 
section 417.  If such a plan permits loans to participants, then section 417(a)(4) 
requires a plan to obtain the consent of the spouse of a married participant 
before making a loan to the participant. 

• Under section 401(a)(11)(B)(iii), certain qualified defined contribution retirement 
plans are exempt from the QJSA and QPSA requirements provided that a 
married participant’s benefit is payable in full, on the death of the participant, to 
the participant’s surviving spouse, unless the surviving spouse consents to the 
designation of a different beneficiary.

• Under the required minimum distribution rules of section 401(a)(9) and the 
rollover rules of section 402(c), additional alternatives are provided for surviving 
spouses that are not available to non-spousal beneficiaries. 

• Under section 1563(e)(5), generally a spouse is treated as owning shares owned 
by the other spouse for purposes of determining whether corporations are 
members of a controlled group under section 414(b). 



2

• Under section 318(a)(1), generally a spouse is treated as owning shares owned 
by the other spouse for purposes of determining whether an employee is a key 
employee under section 416(i)(1), including whether an employee is considered 
a 5% owner. 

• Under section 409(n), an employee stock ownership plan (ESOP) that acquires 
certain employer securities generally must prohibit the allocation or accrual of 
those securities for the benefit of certain individuals, including the spouse of the 
seller and the spouse of any individual who owns 25% or more of the securities.

• Under section 409(p), no portion of the assets of an ESOP attributable to 
employer securities consisting of S corporation stock may accrue during a 
nonallocation year for the benefit of any disqualified person or certain family 
members of the disqualified person (including the spouse) in certain 
circumstances.

• Under section 401(a)(13)(B), the anti-alienation rules do not apply to the creation, 
assignment, or recognition of an alternate payee’s right to receive all or a portion 
of the benefits payable to a participant under a plan pursuant to a qualified 
domestic relations order (QDRO) described in section 414(p), and, under section 
402(e)(1), an alternate payee who is a spouse or former spouse of the participant 
is treated as the distributee of a distribution under a QDRO. 

02.  Defense of Marriage Act 

Until the decision of the Supreme Court in Windsor found it unconstitutional, section 3 of 
the Defense of Marriage Act (DOMA) prohibited the recognition of same-sex spouses 
for purposes of Federal tax law.  Specifically, section 3 of DOMA provided that: 

In determining the meaning of any Act of Congress, or of any ruling, regulation, 
or interpretation of the various administrative bureaus and agencies of the United 
States, the word ‘marriage’ means only a legal union between one man and one 
woman as husband and wife, and the word ‘spouse’ refers only to a person of the 
opposite sex who is a husband or a wife. 

1 U.S.C. § 7.  As a result, same-sex spouses were not recognized for purposes of the 
Code with respect to qualified retirement plans. 

03.  Effect of the Windsor Decision and Rev. Rul. 2013-17 

In the Windsor decision, the Supreme Court held on June 26, 2013 that section 3 of 
DOMA is unconstitutional because it violates Fifth Amendment principles.  Subsequent 
to the Windsor decision, Rev. Rul. 2013-17 held the following:

(1) For Federal tax purposes, the terms “spouse,” “husband and wife,” “husband,” 
and “wife” include an individual married to a person of the same sex if the individuals 



3

are lawfully married under state law, and the term “marriage” includes such a marriage 
between individuals of the same sex.

(2) For Federal tax purposes, the Internal Revenue Service (Service) adopts a 
general rule recognizing a marriage of same-sex individuals that was validly entered 
into in a state whose laws authorize the marriage of two individuals of the same sex 
even if the married couple is domiciled in a state that does not recognize the validity of 
same-sex marriages.

(3) For Federal tax purposes, the terms “spouse,” “husband and wife,” “husband,” 
and “wife” do not include individuals (whether of the opposite sex or the same sex) who 
have entered into a registered domestic partnership, civil union, or other similar formal 
relationship recognized under state law that is not denominated as a marriage under the 
laws of that state, and the term “marriage” does not include such formal relationships.

The holdings of Rev. Rul. 2013-17 apply for all Federal tax purposes, including for 
purposes of the Federal tax rules that apply to qualified retirement plans under 
section 401(a).  The ruling provides that the holdings will be applied prospectively as of 
September 16, 2013.  The ruling also provides that taxpayers may rely on the holdings 
retroactively with respect to any employee benefit plan or arrangement (or any benefit 
provided thereunder) for limited purposes with respect to certain employer-provided 
health coverage and fringe benefits that are specified in the ruling.  The ruling further 
states that: 

The Service intends to issue further guidance on the retroactive application of the 
Supreme Court’s opinion in Windsor to other employee benefits and employee 
benefit plans and arrangements.  Such guidance will take into account the 
potential consequences of retroactive application to all taxpayers involved, 
including the plan sponsor, the plan or arrangement, employers, affected 
employees and beneficiaries.  The Service anticipates that the future guidance 
will provide sufficient time for plan amendments and any necessary corrections 
so that the plan and benefits will retain favorable tax treatment for which they 
otherwise qualify. 

04.  Authority under Section 7805(b)(8) 

Under section 7805(b)(8), the Commissioner is authorized to prescribe the extent, if 
any, to which any judicial decision, or any administrative determination other than by 
regulation, relating to the internal revenue laws is to be applied without retroactive 
effect.



4

05.  Remedial Amendment Period under Section 401(b) 

Section 401(b) provides a period during which a plan may be amended retroactively to 
comply with the Code’s qualification requirements.  The deadline for amending a plan is 
generally the time prescribed by law for filing the return of the employer for its taxable 
year in which the amendment was adopted or such later time as the Secretary may 
designate.

Rev. Proc. 2007-44, 2007-28 I.R.B. 54, provides rules regarding the timing of 
amendments made to qualified retirement plans.  Section 5.05 of Rev. Proc. 2007-44 
provides that when there are changes to the plan qualification requirements that affect 
provisions of the written plan document, the adoption of an interim amendment 
generally is required by the later of the end of the plan year in which the change is first 
effective or the due date of the employer’s tax return for the tax year that includes the 
date the change is first effective.

III. QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS

GENERAL RULES 

Q-1.  How does the Windsor decision affect the application of the Federal tax rules to 
qualified retirement plans? 

A-1.  In the Windsor decision, the Supreme Court held that section 3 of DOMA (which 
applied for purposes of determining an individual’s marital status under Federal law) is 
unconstitutional.  In the absence of section 3 of DOMA, any retirement plan qualification 
rule that applies because a participant is married must be applied with respect to a 
participant who is married to an individual of the same sex.  For example, a participant 
in a plan subject to the rules of section 401(a)(11) who is married to a same-sex spouse 
cannot waive a QJSA without obtaining spousal consent pursuant to section 417.  

Q-2.  As of what date are qualified retirement plans required to be operated in a manner 
that reflects the outcome of Windsor and the guidance in Rev. Rul. 2013-17?

A-2.  Qualified retirement plan operations must reflect the outcome of Windsor as of 
June 26, 2013.  A retirement plan will not be treated as failing to meet the requirements 
of section 401(a) merely because it did not recognize the same-sex spouse of a 
participant as a spouse before June 26, 2013. For Federal tax purposes, effective as of 
September 16, 2013, Rev. Rul. 2013-17 (i) adopts a general rule recognizing a marriage 
of same-sex individuals that is validly entered into in a state whose laws authorize the 
marriage of two individuals of the same sex, even if the individuals are domiciled in a 
state that does not recognize the validity of same-sex marriages, and (ii) provides that 
individuals (whether part of an opposite-sex or same-sex couple) who have entered into 
a registered domestic partnership, civil union, or other similar formal relationship 
recognized under state law that is not denominated as a marriage under the laws of that 
state are not treated as married.  Accordingly, a retirement plan will not be treated as 
failing to meet the requirements of section 401(a) merely because the plan, prior to 



5

September 16, 2013, recognized the same-sex spouse of a participant only if the 
participant was domiciled in a state that recognized same-sex marriages.  See Q&A-8 
for the deadline to adopt plan amendments pursuant to this notice.

Q-3.  May a qualified retirement plan be amended to reflect the outcome of Windsor as 
of a date earlier than June 26, 2013, and, if so, may the amendment reflect the outcome 
of Windsor for only certain purposes? 

A-3.  A qualified retirement plan will not lose its qualified status due to an amendment to 
reflect the outcome of Windsor for some or all purposes as of a date prior to June 26, 
2013, if the amendment complies with applicable qualification requirements (such as 
section 401(a)(4)).  Recognizing same-sex spouses for all purposes under a plan prior 
to June 26, 2013, however, may trigger requirements that are difficult to implement 
retroactively (such as the ownership attribution rules) and may create unintended 
consequences.  Provided that applicable qualification requirements are otherwise 
satisfied, a plan sponsor’s choice of a date before June 26, 2013, and the purposes for 
which the plan amendments recognize same-sex spouses before June 26, 2013, do not 
affect the qualified status of the plan.  For example, for the period before June 26, 2013, 
a plan sponsor may choose to amend its plan to reflect the outcome of Windsor solely 
with respect to the QJSA and QPSA requirements of section 401(a)(11) and, for those 
purposes, solely with respect to participants with annuity starting dates or dates of death 
on or after a specified date. 

PLAN AMENDMENTS 

Q-4.  For purposes of satisfying the Federal tax rules relating to qualified retirement 
plans, must a qualified retirement plan be amended to reflect the outcome of Windsor
and the guidance in Rev. Rul. 2013-17 and this notice? 

A-4.  Whether a plan must be amended to reflect the outcome of Windsor and the 
guidance in Rev. Rul. 2013-17 and this notice depends on the terms of the specific plan, 
as described in Q&A-5 through Q&A-7 of this notice. 

Q-5.  Must a plan sponsor amend a qualified retirement plan if its terms with respect to 
the requirements of section 401(a) define a marital relationship by reference to section 3 
of DOMA or if the plan’s terms are otherwise inconsistent with the outcome of Windsor
or the guidance in Rev. Rul. 2013-17 or this notice? 

A-5.  If a plan’s terms with respect to the requirements of section 401(a) define a marital 
relationship by reference to section 3 of DOMA or are otherwise inconsistent with the 
outcome of Windsor or the guidance in Rev. Rul. 2013-17 or this notice, then an 
amendment to the plan that reflects the outcome of Windsor and the guidance in Rev. 
Rul. 2013-17 and this notice is required by the date specified in Q&A-8 of this notice. 

Q-6.  If a qualified retirement plan’s terms are not inconsistent with the outcome of 
Windsor and the guidance in Rev. Rul. 2013-17 and this notice (for example, the term 



6

“spouse,” “legally married spouse” or “spouse under Federal law” is used in the plan 
without any distinction between a same-sex spouse and an opposite-sex spouse), must 
the plan be amended to reflect the change in meaning or interpretation of those terms to 
include same-sex spouses? 

A-6.  If a plan’s terms are not inconsistent with the outcome of Windsor and the 
guidance in Rev. Rul. 2013-17 and this notice, an amendment generally would not be 
required.  If no amendment to such a plan is made, the plan nonetheless must be 
operated in accordance with the provisions of Q&A-2 of this notice.  (Though not 
required, a clarifying amendment may be useful for purposes of plan administration.) 

Q-7.  If a plan sponsor chooses to apply the rules with respect to married participants in 
qualified retirement plans in a manner that reflects the outcome of Windsor for a period 
before June 26, 2013, is an amendment to the plan required? 

A-7.  Yes, if a plan sponsor chooses to apply the rules in a manner that reflects the 
outcome of Windsor for a period before June 26, 2013, an amendment to the plan that 
specifies the date as of which, and the purposes for which, the rules are applied in this 
manner is required.  The deadline for this amendment is the date specified in Q&A-8 of 
this notice. 

Q-8.  What is the deadline to adopt a plan amendment pursuant to this notice? 

A-8.  The deadline to adopt a plan amendment pursuant to this notice is the later of (i) 
the otherwise applicable deadline under section 5.05 of Rev. Proc. 2007-44, or its 
successor, or (ii) December 31, 2014.  Moreover, in the case of a governmental plan, 
any amendment made pursuant to this notice need not be adopted before the close of 
the first regular legislative session of the legislative body with the authority to amend the 
plan that ends after December 31, 2014.  

Q-9.  Is an amendment to a single-employer defined benefit plan that implements the 
outcome of Windsor and the guidance in Rev. Rul. 2013-17 and this notice subject to 
the requirements of section 436(c)? 

A-9.  In general, under section 436(c), an amendment to a single-employer defined 
benefit plan that increases the liabilities of the plan cannot take effect unless the plan’s 
adjusted funding target attainment percentage is sufficient or the employer makes the 
additional contribution specified under section 436(c)(2).  However, this notice provides 
a special rule pursuant to § 1.436-1(c)(4)(iii).  Under this special rule, a plan amendment 
that is described in Q&A-5 of this notice and that takes effect on June 26, 2013, is not 
treated as an amendment to which section 436(c) applies.  In contrast, a plan 
amendment that is described in Q&A-7 of this notice is an amendment to which section 
436(c) applies. 

IV. EFFECT ON OTHER DOCUMENTS 



7

Rev. Rul. 2013-17 is amplified by providing further guidance on the effect of the 
Windsor decision with respect to qualified retirement plans under section 401(a). 

V. DRAFTING INFORMATION 

The principal authors of this notice are Angelique Carrington of the Employee Plans, 
Tax Exempt and Government Entities Division, and Jeremy Lamb of the Office of 
Division Counsel/Associate Chief Counsel (Tax Exempt and Government Entities).  For 
further information regarding this notice, contact Ms. Carrington at 
RetirementPlanQuestions@irs.gov or Mr. Lamb at (202) 317-6700 (not a toll-free call). 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb      
 
DATE:   April 23, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  Legislative Studies 
 
 
The Government Finance Committee met on April 23. Attached, for your information, are 
two committee memorandums relating to the actuarial firms that responded to the RFP and 
on health premiums.  
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sharon Schiermeister      
 
DATE:   March 3, 2014                                                                       ` 
 
SUBJECT:  2013 COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT 
 
 
The 2013 comprehensive annual financial report has been completed.  The report contains 
detailed financial, investment, actuarial and statistical information for the plans administered 
by NDPERS.  You can view, download or print the report from the NDPERS website at  
 
 http://www.nd.gov/ndpers/forms-and-publications/index.html 
 
An email notice was sent to each participating employer notifying them that the annual 
report is available on the NDPERS website.  The report was submitted to the Government 
Finance Officers Association with an application for the GFOA Certificate of Excellence in 
Financial Reporting.   
 
Please let me know if you have any questions on the report. 
 
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 

http://www.nd.gov/ndpers/forms-and-publications/index.html


 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sharon Schiermeister      
 
DATE:   April 22, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  PERSLink Challenges 
 
At the Board planning meeting held in January, an overview was provided of the challenges 
that we are facing with the PERSLink system.  Since going live in October 2010, there have 
been several accomplishments, which include the following: 

 
January 2011 – Transitioned to new vision insurance vendor 
July 2011 – Transitioned to new life insurance vendor 
November 2011 – Transitioned to new recordkeeper for the DC and Companion 
Plans 
January 2012 – Implemented new HDHP plan and HSA vendor; deployed Member 
Self Service (MSS) for retirees 
June 2012 – PERSLink Framework upgrade 
September 2012 – MSS pilot for active employees 
January 2013 – Transitioned to new dental insurance vendor; transitioned FlexComp 
claims processing to a third-party administrator 
April – September 2013 – Deployed MSS to all active employees 
October 2013 – MSS available for annual enrollment; expanded eligibility for the DC 
plan 
 

Although we have experienced much success with our system implementation, we have 
identified some concerns. These concerns include:  backlog of system refinements that are 
not getting resolved; new enhancements/changes lead to more issues; system performance 
issues; and deterioration of user confidence.  We shared these concerns with Sagitec, our 
software vendor, and asked that they perform an analysis to determine the root cause and 
identify solutions to address these concerns. 
 
Their analysis identified three main areas which they felt were the cause for our concerns:  
high volume of enhancements in a short timeframe has restricted the amount of time 
available to review and test as thoroughly as possible; impact analysis and testing have not 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



been adequate to identify and prevent new issues; and team size is inadequate to manage 
the workload.  They came back with an action plan that included process improvements for 
testing and releasing changes into Production, an investment in the system by Sagitec, and 
an investment in the system by NDPERS.   
 
The process improvements that were recommended were implemented in January 2014 
and seem to be working so far.   The investment by Sagitec includes dedicating 2.5 
additional developers to work on a redesign of the Employer Self Service (ESS) functionality 
and complete system refinements related to employer payroll reporting.  This effort began in 
January and will continue through October 2014.  The investment by NDPERS would 
involve authorizing additional expenditures to retain the additional developers to work on the 
backlog of system refinements.  This was estimated to cost $244,000 and take 
approximately 8 months to complete.  At the January planning meeting, the Board indicated 
their support to make this investment in the system starting in this biennium, if possible.  
 
If it is still the desire of the Board to make an investment in the system to resolve the 
backlog, the following decisions will need to be made: 
 

1. Should this work effort start in the 2013-15 biennium or 2015-17 biennium?   
 
Staff would recommend that work begin in the current biennium, around 
October/November 2014. This would allow the same team of developers that Sagitec 
has dedicated to the ESS/employer project to continue working on our system, rather 
than being re-assigned to another client.  In addition, it was acknowledged at the 
January planning meeting that resolving the backlog as soon as possible would be 
most beneficial. 
 

2. If work begins in the current biennium, it would be necessary to transfer appropriation 
authority from the Contingency line item to the Operating Expense line item.  The 
Contingency line item has $250,000 of appropriation authority.  How much 
appropriation authority should be transferred from the Contingency line item?   
 
Sagitec previously provided a high level estimate of $244,000 and 8 months of effort 
to work through the backlog.  They are currently working on updating this estimate.  
Staff would recommend that no more than $200,000 be transferred at this time so 
that a balance of $50,000 remains in the Contingency line item and that the 
remaining balance of the work effort be included in the 2015-17 budget request. 
 

3. If work begins in the 2015-17 biennium, how much appropriation authority should be 
included in the budget request? 
 
As mentioned above, Sagitec previously provided an estimate of $244,000 and is 
currently working on updating this estimate.  Staff would recommend that the amount 
from the updated estimate, plus an additional amount to cover potential refinements 
uncovered between now and July 2015 and a potential increase in hourly rates, be 
included in the 2015-17 budget request.  This assumes that no work is done on the 
backlog during the current biennium. 

2 | P a g e  
 



 
4. What type of fee arrangement should be set up for these additional services? 

 
Currently, we purchase a set amount of hours from Sagitec at a fixed fee 
($330,200/year for $7,200 hours of support).  Staff would recommend a different 
arrangement for the back log work effort since it is difficult to estimate the exact 
number of hours it may take to fix an issue.  We want to make sure that there is a 
guarantee that a set number of items will be resolved for a set price.  For example, if 
Sagitec estimates that it will take 300 hours to fix 30 items and the cost for this is 
$30,000 (300 hours X $100/hour), but it actually takes the developers 320 hours to 
resolve the items, NDPERS would only pay the $30,000.  If it only takes 270 hours to 
fix the 30 items, NDPERS would only pay $27,000 (270 hours X $100/hour). Staff 
would recommend that a fee for service, with a not to exceed amount, be set up for 
the backlog project.  
 

Board Action Requested:  Take action on staff recommendations listed above. 

3 | P a g e  
 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Deb Knudsen     
 
DATE:   April 21, 2014 
 
SUBJECT:  Follow-up Website Information 
 
 
Back in January at the Board retreat, Sparb touched on some options regarding our website 
and various Social Media that would be available to NDPERS, should the NDPERS Board 
decide to utilize it.   
 
As Sparb indicated, a representative of the Segal Company, Jennifer Schuster, worked with 
us on defining the project at hand and breaking it into digestible pieces.  At the start, we 
agreed that the current NDPERS website provides members, employers, business partners 
and the public with comprehensive information about our benefits plans and our 
organization. Members and participating employers can also conduct transactions with us 
online.  
 
Through this initiative, she suggested that we will repurpose the investments we’ve made in 
content and at the same time transform how we present this information to our many 
audiences.  Reasons we need to redesign the NDPERS website include: 
  

• Modernizing and enhancing the site’s look, feel and organization to ensure that 
our stakeholders find the information they seek and can easily conduct business 
with NDPERS.   

• Our members, both active and retired, are already using social media, so we 
should consider leveraging these channels to broaden our reach. 

• Our members, both active and retired, are also rapidly adopting mobile devices.  
So as we redesign our website, we have the opportunity to build it for easy access 
regardless of the user’s device of choice (computer, tablet, mobile phone) and 
operating system. 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 



• As access is improved for mobile devices, we anticipate that there will be higher 
demand for electronic content and less reliance on print media over time, 
hopefully reducing print and postage costs. 
 

Segal estimated that to cover the most critical areas and go out to bid for services, it would 
take approximately two months time.  This would include developing site functional 
requirements, developing and issuing an RFP, evaluating RFP responses and providing a 
vendor recommendation and budget for the Board/legislature. 
 
She proposed the timeline below for the actual re-development of the website and 
integration of social media that is selected for use. 

 
She also provided some potential budget requirements.  Her estimate projected 
approximately $63,090.00 for total site development costs and recommended an additional 
allowance of $11,340 for ongoing support and maintenance for 12 months after the initial 
launch of the website. 
 
 
 

2 | P a g e  
 



 
In addition to consulting the Segal Company, we also checked with Rebecca Ternes, deputy 
director of the Insurance Commissioner’s office, as we thought they had an attractive and 
functional website.  Their experience seems to confirm Segal’s recommendation to retain 
ongoing support for a certain period after the website is launched.  Ms. Ternes indicated 
that they started out with a person specifically responsible for the website, but that person 
no longer works there and they maintain their own website presently.  She clarified that the 
social media they utilize is solely for the purpose of turning information seekers to their 
website (twitter, flickr and youtube).   Initially they used a local firm to develop their site and 
had a dedicated position devoted to public information.  She indicated they were able to do 
their project for less than what our costs are projected at, but indicated they were existing 
clients with the firm that designed their site and their public information employee was very 
experienced in this area.   
 
Proposed Action Plan: 
 

1. Include the estimated cost of the project in our proposed budget to the OMB this 
summer. 

2. Late this fall, (November) we issue an RFP to more precisely develop the costs for 
the project, which we can then share with the legislature if the Governor approves 
moving forward. 

3. If approved by the Legislature and Governor, begin project implementation at the 
beginning of the 2015-2017 biennium.   

3 | P a g e  
 



 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    NDPERS Board    
 
FROM:   Kathy      
 
DATE:   April 22, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  Personnel Policy Manual Revisions 
 
 
We have updated/revised the following sections of our Personnel Policy Manual: 
 
Section 2.7:   Updates the language for our smoking policy to comply with NDCC 23-12-10. 
 
Section 2.8: Modified the Cell Phone Use in Vehicles policy.  Section 26.2 was modified 

accordingly.  Changed name to Distracted Driving Policy based on 
recommendation from Risk Management which will also qualify us for a 
discount on our premium.  

 
Section 26.2 Reflects the change made to 2.8 and defines the distracted driver policy for 

NDPERS employees. 
 
Section 8.5: Added new section to clarify the conditions under which NDPERS will pay 

out annual leave hours in the event an employee terminates employment 
and transfers to another state agency.  

 
Section 18.6  Revises language regarding reimbursements for tuition to indicate that 

payments made for educational expenses are excluded from gross income.  
 
Section 21.1 Updates the language to include the eligibility for service awards for three, 

forty-five and fifty years of service.  
 
Copies of the redacted policies are included for your information. Staff recommends that the 
board approve the proposed revisions. 
 
 
Board Action Requested 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 













 
 
 
 
 

FAX: (701) 328-3920  ●    EMAIL: NDPERS-info@nd.gov ●  www.nd.gov/ndpers 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
TO:    PERS Board    
 
FROM:   Sparb       
 
DATE:   April 22, 2014  
 
SUBJECT:  ANNUAL EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR EVALUATION 
 
 
It is time to conduct the annual evaluation for the Executive Director.  Attached is the form 
that is used for the evaluation.  
 
In the past the Board has appointed a committee of three to coordinate the annual 
evaluation of the Executive Director and make a salary recommendation at the June 
meeting. Last year Mr. Sandal, Ms. Smith and Chairman Strinden served on the committee. 
 
 
Board Action Requested 
To determine how to proceed with the evaluation process.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

North Dakota 
Public Employees Retirement System  
400 East Broadway, Suite 505 ● Box 1657 
Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657 

Sparb Collins  
Executive Director  
(701) 328-3900 
1-800-803-7377 












































	Agenda
	Retirement
	Job Service Retirement Plan
	GASB 67/68
	Job Service Retirement Plan DOL Update

	Group Insurance
	Healthy Blue Authorization
	Health Plan Consultant Selection
	Health Plan
	Affordable Care Act Update
	Affordable Care Act Fees
	Long Term Care Insurance
	HIPAA Business Associate Agreement with BCBSND
	Delta Dental Rate Renewal
	HB 1443 Diabetes Coalition

	Miscellaneous
	DOMA Update
	Legislative Studies
	2013 Annual Report
	PERSLink
	Website Development
	Personnel Policies
	Executive Director Review
	Quarterly Consultant Fees
	Audit Committee Information

	ADP85AC.tmp
	Sparb Collins
	North Dakota
	Bismarck, North Dakota 58502-1657



